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Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited
Regd. Office: Theing Road, Phillaur-144410
Corporate office: - 8th Floor, Vatika Towers, Golf Course Road, Gurgaon 122003
(CIN: U74899PB1995PL C033417)
Tel No. 01826- 225418, Fax N0.01826 — 222915, E-mail: cs.bis@cremica.in, website: www.cremica.in

NOTICE OF 24™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24" Annual General Meeting of the members of MRS. BECTORS
FOOD SPECIALITIES LIMITED (‘The Company’) will be held on Friday, 20th Day of September,
2019 at 16:00 hours (IST) at the registered office of the Company situated at Theing Road, Phillaur,
Distt. Jalandhar, Punjab — 144410 to transact the following Business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019, comprising Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement
of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 along with Notes to
Accounts and Cash Flow Statement appended thereto and Reports of the Board of
directors and Statutory Auditors thereon and

(b) the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019, comprising Consolidated Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on March 31,
2019 along with Notes to Accounts and Cash Flow Statement appended thereto and
reports of the Statutory Auditors thereon:

2. To confirm the interim dividend of Re. 0.75/- per equity share paid during the year as the final
dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019.

3. To Appoint Director in place of Mr. Anoop Bector, Director (DIN NO. 00108589) who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

4. To appoint and fix the remuneration of Auditor:

To Consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary
Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (“Rules”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force, M/s. B SR & Co. LLP (ICAI Firm registration number 101248W/\W100022), be
and are hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5(five)
consecutive years from the conclusion of this 24" Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the
conclusion of the 29" AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2024 at such remuneration, out
of pocket expenses and travelling expenses etc. as may be mutually agreed between the Board
of Directors of the Company and the Auditors.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix such
remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory
Auditors in connection with the audit and that the remuneration may be paid on a progressive
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billing basis to be agreed between the Statutory Auditors and the Board of Directors of the
Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all necessary steps and to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things which may be deemed proper, expedient or necessary in this behalf.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To alter the Clause lll (B) of Memorandum of Association.
To Consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 13, Section 4 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force and rules made thereunder and as agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “Board” which term shall include
any Committee or one or more Directors), subject to such other requisite approvals, if any, in this
regard from appropriate authorities and terms(s), condition(s), amendment(s), modification(s), as
may be required or suggested by any such appropriate authorities, and the consent of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for alteration of the Clause 1l (B) of Objects
Clause of the Memorandum of Association (“MOA”) of the Company by inserting the following
after point 23:

24. to borrow money from any state financial corporations, banks or other financial institutions
any term loans or other sums on such security and other charges as stipulated by the financial
corporation or banks with mortgage of all or any of property of the company whether present or
future or both.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Anoop Bector (DIN NO. 00108589), Managing Director
and/or Mr. Ishaan Bector (DIN No. 02906180), Wholetime Director be and are hereby authorized
to do all such acts, things, deeds and matters as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to
the aforesaid resolution, including but not limited to filing of necessary statutory documents with
concerned Registrar of Companies and other statutory authorities as applicable.”

By order of the Board
For Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

sd/-

(ANOOP BECTOR)

Managing Director

DIN: 00108589

Address: H.No. C-13,

Convent School Road, Sarabha Nagar,
Ludhiana, PB. — 141001

Date: 29" July, 2019
Place: Gurgaon
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NOTES

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(THE MEETING) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE DULY COMPLETED,
STAMPED AND MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF COMMENCEMENT OF
THE MEETING. THE BLANK PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their Authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

3. The relative Explanatory Statement under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of Item No. 5 of the Notice as set out above, is annexed hereto.

4. Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from
Friday, September 13, 2019 to Friday 20, 2019 (both days inclusive).

5. Copies of Notice of 24" AGM along with attendance slip & proxy form are being sent by
electronic mode only to the members whose email addresses are registered with the
Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has
requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email
addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by the permitted mode.

6. Members are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed as per specimen signature
recorded with the company for admission to the company hall.

7. Members who hold shares in the Dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and
DP ID numbers for easy identification of attendance at the 24™ Annual General Meeting.

8. Members/Proxies are requested to bring to the meeting the Attendance slip duly filled in while
attending the Annual General Meeting.

9. The Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education & Protection Fund of the Central
Government as required in terms of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the current
Financial Year is not applicable.

10. The relevant records and documents connected with the businesses set out in the Notice are
available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 12.00 Noon and
3.00 P.M. on all working days up to the day of the Annual General Meeting and will also be
available at the meeting.

11. The Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Route Map of the Venue of the above mentioned meeting
is enclosed herewith.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE MPANIES ACT, 201

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business
mentioned under item no. 5 of the accompanying Notice:

ITEM NO. 5

The Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of the Company do not contain the borrowing
powers necessary to carry out the Main Objects of the Company. Any act done beyond the powers
conferred by the Memorandum of Association is ultra vires. So, there is a need to alter the Clause
IIT (B) of the Object Clause of Memorandum of Association to borrow money from any state
financial corporations, banks or other financial institutions any term loans or other sums on such
security and other charges as stipulated by the financial corporation or banks with mortgage of all
or any of property of the company whether present or future or both.

Since the alteration of Object Clause of Memorandum of Association requires the approval of
members of the Company, the Board recommends the resolution as set out at Iltem No. 5 of the
accompanying Notice for the approval by the Members of the Company by way of a Special
Resolution.

None of the Directors, Manager, and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives
are in any way concerned or interested in the proposed Resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the
Notice.

By order of the Board
For Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

sd/-

(ANOOP BECTOR)

Managing Director

DIN: 00108589

Address: H.No. C-13,

Convent School Road, Sarabha Nagar,
Ludhiana, PB. - 141001

Date: 29" July, 2019
Place: Gurgaon
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Details of director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
[Pursuant to Paragraph 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings]

Particulars Mr. Anoop Bector
Date of Birth 05.10.1962
Date of first Appointment as Director 19.09.1995

Qualifications

Bachelor’s degree in commerce from Satish Chander Dhawan Government
College, Panjab University

Expertise in specific functional area

He has approx. 30 years of Industry experience

Directorships held in other body
corporate

ason 31St March 2019

Bakebest Foods Private Limited

Mrs. Bectors’ English Oven Limited
Cremica Agro Foods Limited

Membership/
Chairmanship

of committees of
other companies
(includes only
Audit Committee
and Stakeholders
Relationship
Committee) as on
31 March 2019

Member of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of
Cremica Agro Foods Limited

Number of equity shares held in the
Company as on 315t March, 2019

2,28,48,674

Relationship with other Directors and
KeyManagerial Personnel

Mr. Anoop Bector is son of Mrs. Rajni Bector (Director) and father of Mr. Ishaan
Bector (Whole Time Director)

Remuneration Last Drawn from the
Company

Rs. 2,99,65,500/-

No. of meetings of the Board attended
during the year

12 (Twelve)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 24™ Annual report on the affairs of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 315 March, 2019.

1. Financial summary or performance of the company

1A. Standalone Financial Summary or performance of the company:

(Amountin Rs. Million)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Revenue from operations (Net) 7358.89 6533.31
Other Income 76.03 35.91
Total Income 7434.92 6569.22
Less: Expenses 6527.36 5797.05
Profit b_efc_Jre Financial Expenses, 907.56 77217
Depreciation and Taxation
Less: Financial expenses(Finance Cost) 123.39 55.29
Less: Depreciation and amortization 308.61 24411
Profit before Taxation 475.56 472,77
Less : Tax Expense (Deferred & Current) 151.79 152.25
Profit for the year 323.77 320.52
Add: Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for 0.14 171
the year
Total comprehensive income for the year 323.91 322.23
Earnings Per Share
Basic 5.65 5.60
Diluted 5.65 5.59

1B. Consolidated Financial Summary or performance of the company:

(Amountin Rs. Million)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Revenue from operations (Net) 7836.65 6939.65
Other Income 23.64 17.90
Total Income 7860.29 6957.55
Less: Expenses 6892.96 6096.23
Profit before Financial Expenses, 967.33 861.32
Depreciation and Taxation
Less: Financial expenses(Finance Cost) 123.39 57.78
Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 337.13 272.93
Add: Profit before share of equity accounted 0.68 0.17
investees and tax share of net profit of associates
accounted for using the equity method
Profit before Taxation 507.49 530.78
Less : Tax Expense (Deferred & Current) 175.39 170.30
Profit for the year 332.10 360.48
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Add: Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for 0.27 175
the year

Total comprehensive income for the year 332.37 362.23
Earnings Per Share

Basic 5.80 6.30
Diluted 5.79 6.29

Indian Accounting Standard

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 16th February, 2015,
notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain classes of
Companies. The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the
financial statements have been prepared as per the Indian Accounting Standard Rules,
2015, as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant
Rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Operations

On Standalone Basis, the Company has reported revenue from operations of ¥ 7358.89
Mn. for the financial year 2018-2019 as compared to ¥6533.31 Mn. in the previous
financial year 2017-2018, showing an increase of 12.64 % over the previous year. The
profit before financial expenses, depreciation and taxation increased to ¥907.56 Mn as
compared to ¥772.17 Mn in the previous year, showing an increase of 17.53%.The Net
Profit for the year under review amounted to ¥ 323.77 Mn. as compared to ¥320.52 Mn.
in the previous year, showing an increase of 1.01%.

On Consolidated basis, the Company has reported revenue from operations of ¥7836.65
Mn. for the financial year 2018-2019 as compared to ¥6939.65 Mn. in the previous
financial year 2017-2018, showing an increase of 12.93% over the previous year. The
profit before financial expenses, depreciation and taxation increased to ¥967.33 Mn as
compared to ¥861.32 Mn in the previous year showing an increase of 12.31%. The Net
Profit for the year under review amounted to ¥ 332.10 Mn. as compared to ¥360.48 Mn.
in the previous year, showing a decrease of 7.87%.

The decrease in net profit is due to increase in depreciation and interest to ¥460.52 Mn
as compared to ¥330.71 Mn in the previous year. This depreciation and interest in the
current year is increased due to the set-up of new unit at Rajpura and expansion of Greater
Noida Unit.

Transfer to reserves
The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.
Dividend

Your Company in the month of March, 2019 declared an Interim Dividend of Re. 0.75 per
equity share of face value of INR 10 each amounting to Rs. 42.95 Mn. for the current
Financial Year 2018-2019 to the shareholders, who were on the register of members of
the Company as on the closing hours of business on 25" March, 2019, being the record
date fixed by the Board of Directors for this purpose. The Board of Directors recommend
this interim dividend paid as the final dividend for the Financial Year 2018-2019.
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6. Material Changes between the date of the Board report and end of financial year

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

7. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and
company’s operations in future.

8. Subsidiary Company/Joint Venture/Associate Company

At the close of financial year 2018-19, the company has two subsidiary companies viz.
i. Bakebest Foods Private Limited
ii. Mrs Bector's English Oven Limited

The company also has one associate company viz., Cremica Agro Foods Limited as on
315 March 2019.

As required under the provisions of section 129(3) read with Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a consolidated financial statement of the company and its subsidiaries has been
prepared and attached to the standalone financial statement of the company. The
consolidated financial statement has been prepared in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards.

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries for the financial year 2018-19, in form AOC-1, (Annexure- D) has been
attached along with the financial statement of the company. A copy of separate audited
financial statements in respect of the subsidiaries shall be provided upon request by a
shareholder.

Further, there have been no such companies which have become or ceased to be its
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies during the year under review.

9. Statutory Auditor & Audit Report

M/s B SR & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.101248W/W-100022)
were appointed by the shareholders in the 20th Annual General Meeting as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to hold office for the period of four years from Financial year
2015-16 to 2018-2019 i.e. (from the conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 24th Annual General meeting). Since their term is expiring on the conclusion
of the ensuing AGM, they are being proposed to be appointed in the ensuing AGM for
another term of five years. The Company has received a certificate from the statutory
auditors to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits
prescribed.
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There are no qualifications or observations or remarks made by the Auditors in their
Report.

10. Change in the nature of business

As required to be reported pursuant to Section 134(3)(q) read with Rule 8(5) (ii) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, There is no change in the nature of business carried
on by company during the financial year 2018-19.

11. Details of directors and key managerial personnel

The following is the constitution of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial personnel
as on date:

1. Mr. Subhash Agarwal Chairman & Independent director

2. Mr. Anoop Bector Managing Director

3. Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel Chief Financial officer and Whole-time Director
4. Mr. Ishaan Bector Whole-time Director

5. Mrs. Rajni Bector Non-executive director

6. Mr. Nem Chand Jain Independent director

7. Mr. Rajiv Dewan* Independent director

8. Mr. Rahul Goswamy Nominee Director

9. Mr. Atul Sud Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mr.

Anoop Bector, Director of the Company shall retire by rotation at Annual General Meeting of
the Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

*Mr. Rajiv Dewan was appointed as an Independent Director on the board w.e.f. 10" July, 2018.
Mr. Tarun Khanna ceased to be Nominee director w.e.f. 10" July, 2018 due to his resignation.

12. Deposits
(In Rupees)

Deposits accepted during the year (including renewed during the year) Nil
Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed at the end of the year Nil
Default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if Nil
so number of such cases and the total amount involved
(i) at the beginning of the year;
(i) maximum during the year
(iii) at the end of the year
Deposits which are not in compliance with requirement of chapter V of the Companies Nil
Act, 2013

13. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and

outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith as
Annexure — A

10
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14. Corporate Social Responsibility

As on the close of the financial year 2019, the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board comprised of one Non-Executive Director, namely, Mrs. Rajni
Bector as Chairman and Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel (Wholetime Director) and Mr. Subhash
Agarwal (Independent Director) as Members.

The Committee’s prime responsibility is to assist the Board in discharging its social
responsibilities by way of formulating and monitoring implementation of the framework of
corporate social responsibility policy.

The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Committee met 2 times during the year i.e., on 10.07.2018 and 22.03.2019 and
recommended to the board a list of activities relating to Cleanliness, Donations to Relief
funds, Trusts and foundations, Promoting health care and Eradicating poverty and
malnutrition which has been stipulated in schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013 and to
spend at least two percent of the average net profits of the Company made during the
three immediately preceding financial years.

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three Financial Years

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years is Rs.473.01 Mn. (Rupees
Four hundred and seventy three Millions only) calculated according to provisions of
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as specified above)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure is Rs. 9.46 Mn. (Rupees Nine Millions four hundred sixty
Thousand Only) approximately.

Details of CSR Spent during the Financial Year.

During the year under review, the company has spent Rs. 0.61 Million on the Maintenance
of fountain near Rakhbagh Chowk, Rs. 0.04 Million on Donation of Filing Cabinet to Civil
Hospital, Rs. 1.37 Millions on Donation of Biscuits for Kerala Relief Fund, Rs. 0.46 Million
on Donation of Biscuits to ClIl (Confederation of Indian Industry) Foundation, Rs. 0.81
Million on Donation of Chapati Making Machine and Cooler to Om Shri Sai Sewa Trust
(Sai Dham) and Rs. 0.1 Million on Vyakti Vikas Kendra India-Donation provided to the
institution ("Art of Living" trust of Shri Shri Ravi Shankar). The Company was not able to
spend the full amount of two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial
years as recommended under the CSR Rule. However, the Company is already paying
all its taxes on time whereby it is contributing to the society.

11



15.

16.

17.

18.

ch"

Bakad with love. Just for pee!

Number of meetings of the Board

During the year 2018-19, the Board of Directors met Twelve times on 20.04.2018,
25.06.2018, 10.07.2018, 01.08.2018, 22.08.2018, 14.09.2018, 09.10.2018, 21.11.2018,
10.12.2018, 25.01.2019, 21.02.2019 and 22.03.2019.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 315 March, 2019,
the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2019 and of the profit and
loss of the company for that period;

(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent directors furnished a declaration that they meet the criteria of
Independence as provided in sub section 6 of the section 149 of the Companies Act 2013
at Board meeting held on 20" day of April 2018.

Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of adirector and other
matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178

The Board of directors has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board consisting of Mr. Rajiv Dewan (Independent Director) as Chairman, Mr. Subhash
Agarwal (Independent Director) as Member and Mr. Rahul Goswamy (Nominee Director)
as Member, in terms of 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 6 of the Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Power) Rules 2014.

The Company considers human resources as its invaluable assets. Policy on nomination
and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees
has been formulated in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to pay

12
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equitable remuneration to the Directors, KMPs and employees of the Company and to
harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company
objective and purpose of the policy.

The objectives and purpose of this policy are:

a) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed
as KMPs and in senior management position in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board for their appointment and removal;

b) To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

¢) To identify the criteria for determining  qualifications, positive  attributes and
independence of a director;

d) To finalize the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel;

e) To assess the independence of Independent Directors; and

f) Such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be
necessary in view of the provision of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules thereunder
and the SEBI (LODR), whenever applicable.

A Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of a director
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and
approved by the Board of directors attached herewith as Annexure —C.

Board Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company had approved a
Nomination and Remuneration policy containing the criteria for performance evaluation,
which was approved & adopted by the Board of directors. The key features of this policy
have also been included in the report. The policy provides for evaluation of the Board and
the individual directors, including the Chairman of the Board and Independent Directors.

Subsequent to the year under review, the evaluation for the period 2018-19 was
completed as per the policy adopted in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act. The Board’s assessment was discussed with the full Board evaluating, amongst other
things, the full and common understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the Board,
contribution towards development of the strategy and ensuring robust and effective risk
management, understanding of the operational programmes being managed by the
Company, receipt of regular inputs, receipt of reports by the Board on financial matters,
budgets and, operations services, timely receipt of information with supporting papers,
regular monitoring and evaluation of progress towards strategic goals and operational
performance, number of board meetings, Committee structures and functioning etc.

The members concluded that the Board was operating in an effective and constructive
manner.
Particulars of Employee:

There are two employees of the Company who have received remuneration exceeding
the limit as stated in rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

13
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Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 i.e., employees who have received remuneration in
excess of Rs. Eight Lacs and Fifty Thousand per month or Rs. One Crore Two Lacs per

annum.

Name of
the
employee

Age |Qualification

Experie
nce
(inyrs.)

Nature of
employment

Designation

Remuneration
for the vyear
(Rs.)

Date of
Appointment
as director

Previous
Employment

Mr. Anoop
Bector

56 | B.Com

30

Permanent

Managing
Director

2,99,65,500

19.09.1995

He was appointed
as Managing
Director in
Cremica Agro
Foods Ltd on
06.09.1989 and
has a rich
experience in the
family business of
Food processing.

Mr.
Ishaan
Bector

30 | Bachelor's
degree in

Permanent

Whole-time
Director

1,35,44,500

15.02.2016

NIL

Arts from
Michigan
State
University

21.

22.

23.

24,

Extract of the annual return in Form MGT-9

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Extract of the annual return in form
MGT-9 is attached with this report as Annexure —G

Secretarial Audit Report

M/s. Anuj Bansal & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries Jalandhar has been
appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company pursuant to section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel), Rules 2014. A report submitted by them is attached herewith
as Annexure —F. There was no qualification, reservation or adverse remark in the Report
of the Secretarial Auditor.

Related Party Transactions
Details of related party transactions in Form AOC-2 pursuant to section 134 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014

attached herewith as Annexure —E.

Share Capital and provision of money by Company for purchase of its own shares
by trustees or employees for the benefit of employees
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Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights, sweat shares,
employee stock options and made any provision of money for purchase of its own shares
by trustees or employees for the benefit of employees.

Audit Committee and Vigil Mechanism

As required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules 2014, the Board of Directors have already
constituted Audit committee, which as of the close of the financial year under review
comprised of Mr. Rajiv Dewan, Independent Director as Chairman, Mr. Rahul Goswamy,
Nominee Director as Member and Mr. Subhash Agarwal, Independent Director as
Member.

The committee held five meetings during the year under review.

The Board of directors established a vigil mechanism to redress the genuine
concerns/grievances of the employees and directors of the Company. Mr. Seeraj Beri,
Manager Accounts has been designated as Whistle and Ethics Officer to hear the
grievances of the employees and directors of the Company; however offences of serious
nature may be brought to the attention of the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company who shall after hearing the concerned person award appropriate punishment to
the offender. The Audit Committee regularly review the working of the mechanism. No
complaint was received during the year under review.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has a Risk Management Policy with an objective to formalize the process
of identification of potential risk and adopt appropriate risk mitigation measures through a
risk management structure. The Risk Management Policy is a step taken by the Company
towards strengthening the existing controls. The business of the Company solely depends
upon the agricultural produce which is highly seasonal and this is a major element of risk
which may threaten the existence of the Company.

Disclosure regarding Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Rights

The company under the provision of Section 43 read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has not issued any equity shares with
differential rights.

Disclosure regarding issue of Sweat Equity Shares

The company under the provision Section 54 read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has not issued any sweat equity shares.

Disclosure regarding issue of Employee Stock Options
The Company has issued 300 employee stock options during the year.
The Board of directors, shall, inter alia, disclose in the Directors’ Report for the year, the

details as provided in rule 12 (9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014.

15
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Particulars Details
Options granted 141,742 as on 31t March, 2019
Date Number of Grants
30" June, 2017 70871
14" July, 2017 70871
(increased due to
bonus issue in the ratio
of 1:1)
Total 141742
The Pricing Formula As per Black Scholes Method
Exercise Price (as of the date of | Rs. 174.62

grant of options)

Vesting Period

Employees Stock Option Plan- 2017 (Grant 1):
2 years and 9 months service from grant date

Vesting Date No. of Shares
1%t July, 2018 42952
1t April, 2019 21472
1t April, 2020 21478
Total 85902

Employees Stock Option Plan- 2017 (Grant 2):
3 years and 9 months service from grant date:

Vesting Date No. of Shares
1% April, 2019 18606
1%t April, 2020 18628
15t April, 2021 18606
Total 55840

Total Options vested (excluding | 42,952

forfeited/ lapsed/ cancelled/ and

including excised options) till

31% March, 2019

Options NIL

forfeited/lapsed/cancelled till

315 March, 2019

Options exercised till 31° 300

March, 2019

Total number of shares arising
out of exercise of options as on
31% March, 2019

Existing Equity Shares: 57,267,622
Add: Shares arising due to options exercised: 300
Total No. of shares: 57,267,922

Variations in terms of options

No Variation till date

Money realized by exercise of INR 52,386

options

Total number of options in force | 141,442

(including vested options,

excluding exercised options) as

on 31%t March, 2019

Employee wise details of

options granted to;- Name of Options

Employee | Granted | Exercised | Outstanding

0] key managerial Mr. 17,180 | 100 17,080

personnel; Parveen
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Kumar
Goel
(i) any _employee who Name of Options
receives a grant of Employee | Granted | Exercised | Outstanding
options in any one year of | "\ “Manoj | 28,634 | 100 28,534
option amounting to five Verma
percent or more of Mr. Vishal | 22,908 | - 22,908
options granted during Malik
that year. M. 17,180 | 100 17,080
Parveen
Kumar
Goel
Mr. Neeraj | 17,180 | 100 17,080
Aggarwal
(i) identified employees NIL
who were granted option,
during any one year,
equal to or exceeding
one percent of the issued
capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the
company at the time of
grant;

Voluntary revision of Financial Statements or Board’s report

The Company is complying with the provisions of Section 129 or 134 of Companies Act,
2013, so there was no voluntary revision done by the company during financial year 2018-
19.

Statement in respect of adequacy of Internal Financial Control with reference to the
Financial Statements

Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(q) read with Rule 8(5) (viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, and ICAI guidance note on adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements — it is stated that there is adequate internal control system in the
Company. The Company has an effective and reliable internal control system
commensurate with the size of its operations. The internal control system provides for
well-documented policies and procedures that are aligned with global standards and
processes.

Receipt of any commission/remuneration by MD / WTD of Company from its Holding
or subsidiary

The Company do not have any Holding Company. Further no Subsidiary Company of the

Company has paid any Commission/ remuneration to the Directors of the Company for
the Financial Year 2018-19.
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Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made
by the Board of its own performance, its Directors, and that of its Committees

In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board evaluation was carried
out through a structured evaluation process by all the Directors based on the criteria such
as composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. A separate exercise was
carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors including the Chairman of
the board. They were evaluated on parameters such as their education, knowledge,
experience, expertise, skills, behaviour, leadership qualities, level of engagement,
independence of judgement, decision making ability for safeguarding the interest of the
company, stakeholders and its shareholders. The performance evaluation of the
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire board. The performance evaluation of
the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent
Directors. The Board was satisfied with the evaluation process and the results thereof.

Fraud Reporting
There was no fraud reported to the Board during the year under review.
Particulars of Loan, Guarantees or Investments (LGSI) under Section 186.

The Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantees, or security as
specified under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Internal Auditor

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Grand Thornton India
LLP, Gurgaon, as Internal Auditors for financial year 2018-19 to conduct internal audit for
the financial year 2018-2019.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department to test the adequacy and effectiveness
of Internal Control Systems laid down by the management and to suggest improvement in
the systems. Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the management and are reviewed
by the Audit Committee of the Board. Grand Thornton India LLP, Gurgaon conducted the
internal audit for the financial year 2018-2019 and gave us report which did not had any
objection in it.

Internal financial controls audit
During the financial year 2018-2019 under review, Company’s Internal Controls were

tested by M/s Genikon Services Pvt. Ltd. and no reportable weakness in the system was
observed.
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Cost Auditors

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
appointment of Cost Auditor is not applicable to our company.

Secretarial Standards

The Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India as amended / replaced from time to time have been complied with by
the Company during the financial year under review.

Acknowledgments:

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation and sincere
gratitude to all associates for their valuable support and look forward to their continued co-
operation in the years to come. Your Directors acknowledge the support and co-operation
received from the employees and all those who have helped in the day to day
management.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)
Chairman

(DIN: 02782473)

Place: Gurgaon ADDRESS: HNO. 400/1, Rani Jhansi
Date: 29.07.2019 Road, Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001

19



™
MRS SECTOR'S
Bakad with love. Just for pee!

ANNEXURE -A

Particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 are provided below

The Company operates in a safe and environmentally responsible manner for the long- term benefit of all stakeholders.
The Company is committed to take effective measures to conserve energy and drive energy efficiency in operations.

A.
0]

(if)

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Measures taken for conservation of energy.

a) Replacement of florescent lamps with LED Lights in all plants/ units has been initiated
b) In-house training for energy conservation to the plant members and employees

c) Air pressure reduction in plants to reduce compressed air energy cost.

d) Installations of Wind ventilators on sheds of different units.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy.

The Company is exploring the option of installing solar panels for generation of electricity at all plant
locations

(i) Capital investment on energy conservation equipments

Adequate steps have been taken to keep the installed energy conservation equipments in prompt
conditions. Exact expenditure incurred in this process is not ascertainable.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The company is motivated to continuously work for the process of technology development on need
basis. The team undertakes specific time — bound programmes to improve technology which are tried on
pilot scale / lab basis to achieve desired results and then up scaled at the manufacturing level. The Team
works in close co-ordination with other outside agencies to ensure smooth transfer of technology.
Appropriate documents are created for quality control and food safety.

Benefits derived

The Company has not only improved its productivity quality and productivity but has also reduced its
manufacturing costs. The Company has been able to build its Brand in the Word Markets as a
Manufacturer of world class biscuits.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(In Million)
Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Total Foreign Exchange Received (F.O.B. Value of Export) 2001.20 1927.96
Total Foreign Exchange used 230.81 455.54

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)
Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road, Civil Lines.
Date: 29.07.2019 Ludhiana 141001
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ANNEXURE- B
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY'S CSR POLICY, INCLUDING OVERVIEW OF
PROJECTS OR PROGRAMS PROPOSED TO BE UNDERTAKEN AND A REFERENCE TO
THE WEB-LINK TO THE CSR POLICY

Our philosophy is to undertake socially useful programmes for welfare and sustainable
development of the Community at large. Our initiatives include those aimed at promoting health
care including preventive health care for benefits of different segments of society and in particular
in taking care of deprived, underprivileged persons having health constraints.

Driving with these initiatives the CSR Committee of the Board has recommended to the board a
list of activities relating to Cleanliness, Donations to Relief funds, Trusts and foundations,
Promoting health care and Eradicating poverty and malnutrition which have been stipulated in
schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013 and to spend at least two percent of the average net
profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years.

2. COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE.

Mrs. Rajni Bector (Chairperson and Director)
Mr. Subhash Agarwal (Independent Director) and
Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel (Wholetime Director)

3. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years Rs.473.01 Mn. (Rupees Four
hundred and seventy three Millions only) calculated according to provisions of Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

4. PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (TWO PER CENT OF THE AMOUNT AS IN ITEM 3
ABOVE)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure is Rs. 9.46 Mn. (Rupees Nine Millions four hundred sixty Thousand
Only) approximately.

5. DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
(a)Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 3.39 Millions

(b) Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 6.07 Millions
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
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1) ) 3) 4 ®) (6) ) 8
Sr. | CSR Project or Sector in which Projects or Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount spent:
No. | activity the Project is programs outlay(bud | on the projects | expenditure Direct or
identified. covered. (1)Local area | get) or programs upto to the through
or other project or | Sub Heads: reporting implementing
(2)Specify the | programs | (1)Direct period. agency
State and wise expenditure on
district where projects or
projects or programs.
programs were (2)Overheads.
undertaken.
1. Maintenance of | Ensuring 1. Local Area | - 0.61 Million 0.61 Million Direct
fountain near Environmental 2. State-
Rakhbagh Sustainability Punjab,
Chowk Ludhiana
2. Donation of Promoting 1. Local Area | - 0.04 Million 0.65 Million Direct
Filing Cabinet Preventive 2. State-
to Civil Health Care Punjab,
Hospital Ludhiana
3. Donation of Eradicating 1. Local Area | - 1.37 Million 2.02 Million Through
Biscuits to hunger and 2. State- implementing
CMO Civil malnutrition by Punjab, agency
Surgeon Office | contributing to Ludhiana
fund set up for
relief
4, Donation of Eradicating 1. Others - 0.46 Million 2.48 Million Through
Biscuits to ClI hunger and 2. All Over implementing
(Confederation | malnutrition India agency
of Indian
Industry)
Foundation
5. Donation of Promoting 1. Local Area | - 0.81 Million 3.29 Million Through
Chapati Making | Preventive 2. State- implementing
Machine and Health Care Punjab, agency
Cooler to Om Ludhiana
Shri Sai Sewa
Trust (Sai
Dham)
6. Vyakti Vikas Contribution for | 1. Others - 0.1 Million 3.39 Million Through
Kendra India- socio-economic | 2. All over implementing
Donation development India agency

provided to the
institution ("Art
of Living" trust
of Shri Shri
Ravi Shankar)
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6. IN CASE THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND THE TWO PERCENT OF THE
AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS OR ANY PART
THEREOF, THE COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE THE REASONS FOR NOT SPENDING THE
AMOUNT IN ITS BOARD REPORT

During the year under review, the Company spent Rs. 3.39 Million on various CSR activities but
the Company was not able to spend the full amount of two percent of the average net profit of the
last three financial years as recommended under the CSR Rule. CSR Committee met 2 times
during the period under review and made recommendation to provide scholarship to poor students
and for the eradication of poverty for eligible persons. The CSR Committee had approved certain
long term projects to improve the health and eradicate the poverty like construction of Schools,
construction of shelter homes for the poor and needy. However due to non-availability of land for
purchase, these projects got delayed. The Company is in a better position now to implement its
CSR policy effectively.

7. A RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE CSR COMMITTEE THAT THE
IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING OF CSR POLICY IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CSR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The CSR Committee confirms that implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance
with CSR policy of the Company framed pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Date: 29.07.2019 Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001
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ANNEXURE- C

Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes, and independence of a director recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and approved by the Board of directors.

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board as of the close of financial year
comprised of Mr. Rajiv Dewan, Independent Director as Chairman and Mr. Subhash Agarwal,
Independent Director as Member and Mr. Rahul Goswamy, Nominee Director as Member.

The Committee met four times during the year under review.

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or senior management level and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment. A person to be appointed as Director, KMP or senior
management level should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
gualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the
concerned position. A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation
for integrity, deep expertise and insights in sectors / areas relevant to MBFSL, ability to contribute
to MBFSL’s growth. Independence of directors are decided on the basis of definition of
independent director contained in sub section 6 of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, KMPs and other employees

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Directors will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration and commission to
be paid to the Managing Director shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder. Increments to the existing remuneration /
compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be
within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managing Director. Where any
insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director and any other employees
for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be
treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person
is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the
remuneration. The remuneration and reward structure for employees depends upon their
gualification and experience. The Committee would determine the remuneration of the Directors
and formulate guidelines for remuneration payable to the employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Date: 29.07.2019 Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001
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Form AOC-1

ANNEXURE- D

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Subsidiary 1

(Amount in Million)

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary Bakebest Foods Private Limited
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Same as of Holding Company
different from the holding company’s reporting i.e. 31.03.2019
period
3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Since the Company is Indian
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case Company, this clause is not
of foreign subsidiaries applicable
4. Share capital 181.50
5. Reserves & surplus 87.22
6. Total assets 310.54
7. Total Liabilities 41.82
8. Investments Nil
9. Turnover 477.91
10. Profit before taxation 85.73
11. Provision for taxation 17.58
12. Profit after taxation 62.13
13. Proposed Dividend Nil
14. % of shareholding 100

Subsidary?2

(Amount in Million)

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary Mrs Bector’s English Oven
Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Same as of Holding Company
different from the holding company’s reporting i.e 31.03.2019
period

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Since the Company is Indian
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of | Company, this clause is not
foreign subsidiaries applicable

4. Share capital 0.50

5. Reserves & surplus (0.00)

25




cR'E

Bakad with love. Just for pee!

6. Total assets 0.52
7. Total Liabilities 0.02
8. Investments Nil
9. Turnover Nil
10. Profit before taxation 0.00
11. Provision for taxation 0.00
12. Profit after taxation 0.00
13. Proposed Dividend Nil
14. % of shareholding 100

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to first proviso Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

relation to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

(Amount in Million)

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

Associate- Cremica Agro Foods
Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2019
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by
the company on the year end
No. 1937268
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture | 19.37
Extend of Holding% 43.09
3. Description of how there is significant Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities
influence Limited controls at least 20% of
total voting power of Cremica
Agro Foods Limited
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is Controlling Right is not there
not consolidated
5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as 37.90 million
per latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit/Loss for the year

—

Considered in Consolidation

0.68 million

ii.

Not Considered in Consolidation

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29.07.2019
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road, Civil Lines.
Ludhiana 141001
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ANNEXURE-E

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

(A) Related Party Transactions with Bakebest Foods Private Limited

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature
of relationship

Bakebest Foods Private Limited hereinafter
referred as BBFPL (a private company which is
100% wholly owned subsidiary of the company)

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

a) Sale of Raw material, Finished Goods and other
material relating to food manufacturing

b) Purchase of Raw material, Finished Goods and
other material relating to food manufacturing.

) Sale of property, plant and equipment

d) Rent paid for taking portion of premises for
purpose of Godown

e) Rent received by giving office on rent

f) To grant Loan

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Continuous Basis

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are at
arm’s length basis having value (in Rs) as follows

Sale to Raw Materials, | Upto Rs 5
BBFPL finished goods | million
and Fixed
Assets for food
production

Purchase Raw Materials | Upto Rs 15
from BBFPL | and finished million
goods and
other material
relating to
food
manufacturing
Sale to Property, plant | Rs 0.07 million
BBFPL and equipment

Rent Paid Godown Rs 0.06 million
to BBFPL
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Rent Office Rs 0.06 million
Received

from BBFPL

(e) Justification for entering into such
contracts or arrangements or transactions

BBFPL is a company which deals in Breads and
Buns Manufacturing and supply products to giants
like Mcdonalds.

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

20.11.2017

(B) Related Party Transactions with Ishaan

Bector

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Ishaan Bector, Relative (son) of Mr. Anoop
Bector, Managing Director

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Unsecured Loan Received

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are
at arm’s length basis having value paid to him
(in Rs) as follows

Unsecured Appointed as | Rs. 6.30
Loan Repaid | Whole time Million
Interest paid | Director Rs. 0.25
on Unsecured Million
Loan
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts | Mr. Ishaan Bector is Well- Qualified young

or arrangements or transactions

professional, holds a bachelor’s degree in arts
from Michigan State University and attended a
management programme for family business
from the Indian School of Business and is
capable of handling bakery business of company

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

20.04.2018

(C) Related Party Transactions with Anoop Bector

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing director of the
company

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental Services
Unsecured Loan Received

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are
at arm’s length basis having value upto (in
Rs)as follows
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Property at
rent, rent
paid to Mr.
Anoop Bector

Borrow
Money

Unsecured
Loan Repaid

Interest paid

(Mr. Anoop
Bector is
Managing
Director)

Rs.4.62
million

Rs. 16.19
million

Rs. 14.08
million

Rs. 0.90
million

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions

The property is situated in posh colony and is
used for residence of directors

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

20.11.2017, 20.04.2018

(D) Related Party Transactions with Anoop Bector, HUF

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Anoop Bector HUF ,

(Substantial Interest as

karta) of Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing director

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental services

(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are
at arm’s length basis having value paid to him
(in Rs) as follows

Property at
rent, rent
paid to Mr.
Anoop Bector

(Substantial
Interest as
karta) of Mr.
Anoop
Bector,
Managing
director

Rs 3 Million

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions

The property is situated in Sarabha Nagar and

is used for residence of directors

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

20.11.2017

(E) Related Party Transactions with Mrs. Rajni Bector, Director

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Rajni Bector, Director and Relative (mother) of
Mr. Anoop Bector, Managing Director

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Borrowed Money from Rajni Bector
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(c) Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for One Year

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are
at arm’s length basis having value actually
received (in Rs)as follows

Unsecured
Loan Repaid

Interest Paid

Director and
Relative
(mother) of
Managing
Director

Rs. 0.77
Million

Rs. 0.04
Million

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions

In order to meet the working capital
requirements of the Company

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

20.04.2018

(F) Related Party Transactions with Mrs Bector's English Oven Limited

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Mrs Bector's English Oven Limited (a Limited
company which is 100% wholly owned
subsidiary of the company)

(b) Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Rental services

() Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transactions

Contract for one year

(d) Salient terms of the
arrangements or transactions
value, if any

contracts or
including the

Contracts or arrangements or transactions are
at arm’s length basis having value received as
rent (in Rs)as follows

Property
given at rent,
Rent received

Wholly
owned
subsidiary of
Mrs. Bectors
Food
Specialities
Limited

Rs 0.01
Million

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts
or arrangements or transactions

The property taken on rent by Mrs Bector's
English Oven Limited for using as its registered

office

(f) Date(s) of approval by the board

20.11.2017
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(G) Related Party Transactions with Cremica Agro Foods Limited

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Cremica Agro Foods Limited (a Limited

relationship company which is an Associate of Mrs. Bectors
Food Specialities Limited)
(b) Nature of Rental services

contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the Contract for one year
contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or | Contracts or arrangements or transactions are
arrangements or transactions including the | at arm'’s length basis having value received as

value, if any rent (in Rs) as follows

Property Associate Rs 0.06

given at rent, | of Mrs. Million

Rent Bectors Food

received Specialities

Limited

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts | The property taken on rent by Cremica Agro
or arrangements or transactions Foods Limited for using as its corporate office
(f) Date(s) of approval by the board 05.03.2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

Sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

Chairman

DIN: 02782473

Place: Gurugram HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Date: 29.07.2019 Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001

*Please note that besides above the directors have been paid remunerations as mentioned in MGT-9
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ANNEXURE-F
Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial Year Ending 31.3.2019)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Board of Directors

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited,
Theing Road, Phillaur,
Distt.Jalandhar-144410

Punjab India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Mrs. Bectors Food
Specialities Limited, having registered office at Theing Road, Phillaur, Distt. Jalandhar-
144410 Punjab India, Corporate Identification No. U74899PB1995PLC033417 (hereinafter
called the Company).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon. Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period ended on 31.03.2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and their
records maintained by (“The Company”) for the period ended on 31.3.2019 according to
the provisions of:

L. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

I1. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

II. ~ The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made
thereunder;
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The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the
Company being the unlisted entity:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements)

Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

g. Equity Listing Agreements entered into with BSE Limited, National Stock
Exchange of India Limited; and

h. Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements Regulation, 2015.

As informed to us, the other laws specifically applicable to the Company have
been complied with. In this regard, we have relied on the information/records
produced by the Company during the course of Audit on test check and
randomly basis and limited to that extent only for the following acts:

Food Safety& Standards Act, 2006

The Factories Act, 1948.

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936.

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948.

Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952.

Employers State Insurance Act, 1948.

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965.

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.

Electricity Act 2003.

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and rules thereunder.
Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981 and rules thereunder.

VVVYVVVYVVYVYVYYYVY

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following,
wherever applicable:

i)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.
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ii) During the period under review the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

2. We further report that the Company has, in our opinion, complied with provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with regard to:

Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein;

Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar
of Companies and the Central Government;

Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar
of Companies;

Notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors;

The meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of
resolutions by circulation;

The Annual General Meeting held on 01.08.2018 including the provisions related
to extension of time;

Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee
meetings;

Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors
and the government authorities, wherever required;

Constitution of the Board of Directors / Committee(s) of Directors, appointment,
retirement and reappointment of Directors including the Managing Director and
Whole-time Directors;

Payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and
Whole-time Directors,

Appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors;

Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of
duplicate certificates of shares;

m) Declaration and payment of dividends;

n)

Transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund and uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends
on the websites of the Company and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, if any;
Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever
applicable;

Investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others;
Form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and
loss as prescribed under Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the
same as prescribed in Schedule VI to the Act;

Directors’ report;

Related Party Transactions.
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t) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the
Company; and

u) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the
Act.

3. We further report that:

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

b. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at reasonable gap in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

d. The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions
of the Act; and

e. There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during
the year under review under the Companies Act, Depositories Act, and any other
Act against/on the Company, its Directors and Officers.

f.  The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their
eligibility of appointment, their being Independent and compliance with the Code
of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made under that Act, with regard to maintenance of
minimum public shareholding, being the Unlisted Public Company.

5. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 and the
Byelaws framed thereunder by the Depositories with regard to dematerialization
/rematerialisation of securities and reconciliation of records of dematerialized securities
with all securities issued by the Company.

6. We further report that:

a. the Company is not required to comply (being the Unlisted Public Company)
with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into with BSE
Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

b. the Company is not required to comply (being the Unlisted Public Company)
with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Substantial
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Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 including the provisions
with regard to disclosures and maintenance of records required under the said
Regulations;

c. the Company is not required to comply (being the Unlisted Public Company)
with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 including the provisions with regard to
disclosures and maintenance of records required under the said Regulations;

7. The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and
Regulations made under that Act to the extent applicable.

8. We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there
are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Anuj Bansal & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

sd/-

Anuj Rai Bansal
B.Com, FCS, LLB
M.No. 5166
C.P.No. 3667

Date: 29th Day of July, 2019.
Place: Jalandhar.

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this report.

36



cR'E

Bakad with love. Just for pee!

‘Annexure A’
(Forming Integral Part of Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ending 31.3.2019)

To

The Members,

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited,
Theing Road, Phillaur,
Distt.Jalandhar-144410

Punjab India
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. which
forms the integral part to express our opinion in Form MR-3.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis as the Secretarial Auditors.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Anuj Bansal & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

sd/-

Anuj Rai Bansal
B.Com, FCS, LLB
M.No. 5166
C.P.No. 3667

Date: 29th Day of July, 2019.
Place: Jalandhar.
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ANNEXURE- G
FORM MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31stMARCH
2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i. | CIN U74899PB1995PLC033417
ii. | Registration Date 15/09/1995
iii. | Name of the Company MRS.BECTORS FOOD SPECIALITIES

LIMITED
iv. | Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares / Indian
Non-Government company

v. | Address of the Registered office and Theing Road, Phillaur, Distt.
contact details Jalandhar-144410, Punjab, India
Contact No. (+91-1826)225418,
222826
Fax No. (+91-1826)222915
vi. | Whether Listed Company No
vii. | Name, Address and Contact details of Link Intime India Private Limited,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Address: - 247 Park, C-101,

Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,
Vikhroli  West, Mumbai,
Maharashtra 400083

Tel.: 022 49186000,
49186060

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated:-

Sr.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of % to total
products/ services the Product/ turnover of the
Service Company
1. Manufacture of Bakery Products 1071 100%
which includes Biscuits, Breads etc.
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Sr.No. | Name and CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary | % of | Applicable
address of /Associate share | section
company held
1. Bakebest Foods U15412PB2009PTC033442 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
Private Ltd,
Theing Road,
Phillaur
2. Mrs. Bectors U15412PB2013PLC037958 | Subsidiary 100 2(87)(ii)
English oven
Limited, Theing
Road, Phillaur
3. Cremica Agro L15146PB1989PLC009676 | Associate 43.09 | 2(6)
Foods Limited, B
XXX IIT 324G T
Road West
Ludhiana
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change during
Shareholders the year
Demat Physical | Total % of Total | Demat Physical | Total % of Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 22848674 | Nil 22848674 | 39.90 22848674 | Nil 22848674 | 39.90 Nil
b) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
) State Govt (s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) Bodies Corp Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
f) Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
22848674 | Nil 22848674 | 39.90 22848674 | Nil 22848674 | 39.90 Nil
Sub-total(A)(1):-
2) Foreign
g) NRIs-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
h) Other-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
j) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
k) Any Other.... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total(A)(2):-
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) Venture Capital Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funds
f) Insurance Companies | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
g) FlIs 26770976 Nil 26770976 46.75 26770976 Nil 26770976 46.75 Nil
h) Foreign Venture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
26770976 Nil 26770976 46.75 26770976 Nil 26770976 46.75 Nil
Sub-total(B)(1)
2. Non Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Individuals
(i) Individual
shareholders holding Nil Nil Nil Nil 300 Nil 300 0.00 0.00
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
(ii) Individual 7647972 Nil 7647972 13.35 7647972 Nil 7647972 13.35 Nil
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs 1 lakh
c) Others(Specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total(B)(2) 7647972 Nil 7647972 13.35 7648272 Nil 7648272 13.35 Nil
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 34418948 Nil 34418948 60.10 34419248 Nil 34419248 60.10 Nil
C. Shares held by Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Custodian for GDRs
&ADRs
Grand Total 57267622 Nil 57267622 100.00 57267922 Nil 57267922 100.00 0.00
(A+B+C)
ii.Shareholding of Promoters
% change
in
shareholding
Sr. Shareholding at the beginning of the during the
No. Shareholder’s Name year Shareholding at the end of the year year
No. of % of total | % of No. of % of total % of Shares
Shares Shares of Shares Shares Shares of the | Pledged /
the Pledged/ company encumbered
company encumber- to total
red to total shares
shares
1 Anoop Bector 22848674 39.90 Nil 22848674 39.90 Nil Nil
Total 22848674 39.90 Nil 22848674 39.90 Nil Nil
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iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholder | Shareholding at Change in Shareholding Cumulative
Name the beginning of Shareholding
the year during the year
No. of | % of Date No. of shares Reason | No. of | % of
shares | total Increase/(Decrease) shares | total
shares shares
of the of the
company company

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. | Shareholders the year the year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
1. | Linus Private Limited 13120790 22.91 13120790 22.91
2. | GW Crown Pte Ltd. 11170496 19.51 11170496 19.51
3. | Anoop Bector HUF 2005970 3.50 2005970 3.50
4. | Suvir Bector 1585156 2.77 1585156 2.77
5. | Mabel Private Limited 1380150 2.41 1380150 2.41
6. | Rashmi Bector 1212596 2.12 1212596 2.12
7. | GW Confectionary Pte Itd | 1099540 1.92 1099540 1.92
8. | Ajay Bector 457892 0.79 457892 0.79
9. | Manoj Verma Nil Nil 100 0.00
10. | Neeraj Aggarwal Nil Nil 100 0.00
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v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. | Shareholding of each Directors | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. |and each Key Managerial | beginning of the year year
Personnel
No. of % of total No. of % of total shares of
shares shares of the | shares the company
company

1. | Anoop Bector 22848674 39.90 22848674 39.90

2. | Ishaan Bector 2386358 4.17 2386358 4.17

3. | Parveen Kumar Goel Nil Nil 100 0.00

V. INDEBTEDNESS

(Amount in Rs. Million)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the

beginning of the financial

year

i) Principal Amount 1315.71 25.12 Nil 1340.83
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii) Interest accrued but not 3.67 Nil Nil 3.67
due

Total (i+ii+iii) 1319.38 25.12 Nil 1344.50
Change in Indebtedness

during the financial year

- Addition 276.37 Nil Nil 276.37
- Reduction Nil 3.90 Nil 3.90
Net Change 276.37 3.90 Nil 272.47
Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 1590.94 21.22 Nil 1612.16
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

iii) Interest accrued but not
due 4.81 Nil Nil 4.81
Total (i+ii+iii) 1595.75 21.22 Nil 1616.97
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

(Amount in Rs. Million)

Sr. Particulars of Total
No. Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Amount
Anoop Bector Parveen Kumar Goel | Ishaan Bector
(Managing (Wholetime (Wholetime
Director) Director) Director)
1. Gross salary
(@) Salary as per |29.96 5.23 13.54 48.73
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s | Nil Nil Nil Nil
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary | Nil
under section 17(3) Nil Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option Nil Nil* Nil Nil
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as% of profit
- Others, specify...
5. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
6. Total(A) 29.96 5.23 13.54 48.73

*100 share were allotted to Mr. Parveen Kumar Goel under the ESOP Plan 2017 on 22.03.2019 upon the receipt of Rs. 17462, the price of valuation.
Since the price of valuation and the price of allotment is same. Therefore it does not lead to income.

B. Remuneration to other Directors:

1. Independent Directors (Amount in Rs. Million)
Sr. Particulars of Name of Director Total
No. Remuneration Amount
Nem Chand Rajiv Dewan Subhash
Jain Agarwal
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*Fee for attending board | 0.3 0.125 0.225 0.65
committee meetings

*Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
-Others, please specify | Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total(1) 0.3 0.125 0.225 0.65

2. Other Non- Executive Director
(Amount in Rs. Million)

Particulars of Name of Director Total
Remuneration Amount

Rajni Bector

Other Non-Executive

Directors Nil Nil
*Fee for attending

board committee Nil Nil
meetings

*Commission Nil Nil

*Others, (Consultancy

Fees)

Total (2) Nil Nil
Total (B) = (1+2) 0.65
Total Managerial 49.38
Remuneration

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD

(Amount in Rs. Million)

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary Total
Atul Sud
Gross Salary
(@) Salary as per provisions 0.87 0.87

contained in section17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil
(b) Value of perquisites u/s Nil
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

Nil
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option Nil Nil
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3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4, - Commission as % of profit Nil Nil
- Others, specify...
5. Others, please specify Nil Nil
6. Total 0.87 0.87
VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority[RD | Appeal
the description | Punishment/Compo | /NCLT/Court] | made. If
companies unding fees imposed any(give
Act details)

A. Company
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. Directors IaYrlnls
Penalty Iy ey 1
Punishment | A A ) ) )
Compounding (WAW N ]
C. Other Officers in Default
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29.07.2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited

sd/-

(Subhash Agarwal)

DIN:

Chairman
02782473

HNO. 400/1 Rani Jhansi Road,
Civil Lines, Ludhiana 141001
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INDEPERDEMNT AUDITOR™S REFORT

To the Members of Mrs. Beetors Food Speciabivies Limited

Report an ihe Audit of ihe Standalone Finnncial Statemenis

L.

ol

Chyppiminon

We have audited the stnndabone financial statements of M, Bectors Fowd Specialities Limited | “ihe
Company™), which comprise the sarckalone balance sheet a5 = 31 March 201%, and i standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income ), stondalone statemernt of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash lows for the year then ended, and notes o the stmdalone
Minancial statements, including a sunmary of ihe significant sccoumting policies and other explanatory
infanmntion,

Im our opinien and 10 the best of our mfermation and acconding 1o the explanationg given 1o 'us, the
aloresaud standulape financial statements give the informstion reguired by the Compames Act, 23
(=A™ im the manmer so required and grve & true and far view in conlormity with the sccounting priociples
generally agczpied in Indim, of the state of affarms of the Company as-a1 31 Mareh 2009, and s profit swd
other comprhensive income, changes in equity und its cush fows For the vear ended on that date,

. Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur wdil in accordance with the Signdieds on Auditing (548 specifled under section
4300 of the Act, Owm r::.]:lnll.'gllhilillﬂ under those SAL are fonher described i the Awdife s
Fexporibilitlexs for M Awdit af the Stcndilome Flrgncial Sralements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in sccordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Aecounants of lndia together with the ethical requirements thint are relevant 1w our pudit of the standalone
financial statements onder the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
ocher ethical responsibilities n accordance with these requirements amd the Code of Ethics. We believe
thitt the audit evidence we have obinmed s sulficient snd appropriate 1o provide 5 basis for our opinion

Criber Informeadion

The Company’ s management and Board of Directors are respensible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information inchuded in the Company’s Directors repart, but does not include
the financial swfements and our puditor's report thereon, The Dhirectars Report 15 expecied to be made
available pfier the date of this suditor”s réport.

Chir-opinien on the standalone financial siatements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

= Ry intmrad Crifios
agn k Z o parinaniep e st Regidgoaons
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In conmecton with our wwdit of 1he standalone Gnoncial sutemers, our responsibility is 1o resd the other
information Identificd above when it becomes available and. in doing so, consider whether the other
information is matenally inconsistent with the standolone financial stEemsents or our knewledge ebtained
inh the awdit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstpted, If, based on the work we have pecfarmed, we
sonclude that there s o material missetement of this other mformation, we are required 1o communicte
the matter to thos= :I!prg;:-d. with ROVETNGE

We have nathing to repoi bnthis regand.

4

*

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directers are responsible for the matiers stoted in section
1345) of the Act with respect 1o the prepartion of these stpdalone financia] satements that give 4 e
and fair view of the state of atfaims, profitloss and sther comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
fiows of the Campany in scoordance with the sccounting principles generally aceepted in Indis, including
the Indian Acenuinting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Aci. This responsibility aleo
includes nuinienance of sdeguate accounting records i accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safepunrding of the msse of the Company ond for préventing and detecting fravds and other
irregulanties; selection and apphication of approprise sceouiing policies: making judgments - and
estimates that are reasonable and prodent; and design, implememation and montenance of odequate
imerual  financial controds that were operating effectively for ensuring the seeuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant 1o the preparalion amd presentation of the standalone linancial statements

I ] that grve o true and fair view and are free Trom materil mosstaiement, whether due 1o fraud or emor,

[n preparing the standislone Tinancial ststements, management and Board of Direciors are responsible for
assessing the Compony's abiliny to continue a5 2 going congem, disclosing, 15 opplicable. matters related
T goang concem and using the going concermn basis of accoummg unbess mansgemend eather intends 1o
liquidate the Company or 10 cease operations; or hus noe realistic altemative but 1© do so.

HBoard of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s Tinancial reporting process

5. Auditor's Responsibilitbes for thie Audit of the Standalene Financial Statements

Our objectives are 1o obain reasonable sssurance abouy whether the standalone Gnancial siatements as a
whobe wre free from material misstatement, whether due to froud or error, and 1o fssue an auditor's report
theat includes our opmion, Reasonable assuranoe is a bigh level of assurance, but is not a auarantes that an
audst conducted in secordance with SAs wall alwavs: detect o materinl misstatement when i exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the ageregate,
they could remsonably be expected w influence the economic decisions of users aken on the basis of these
standafone financl stements,

Al part oFan audin in gecordance with BAs, we exerdse profiessional Judgrent and maintalin professional
:ik-l:plh'.‘ihlll |rL|uuHI1m| the sadat, W alsge

e [dentify snd assess the risks of material misstsement of the standalone financial sarernents, whether due
1o fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, awd obmin audit evidence
that e sufficient and appropeiate w0 provide a basis for our opinign. The ask of not det=cting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one cesulting from crror, as fraud miy mvalve
eollusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overtide of interonl contral,

e Obtan on undersionding of internal contrel relevint to the audit in order to design audit procedurss thai
are appropriate in the crcumistances. Under section 143340 of the Ast, we are alio respandible for

-
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expressding our opinion on whether the company haa adeguaie intermal finnncinl cummls with reference o
finoriel statements in ploce and the sperating effectivensss ol such contrals.

Evaluane the appropriaicncss of accountng policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting estimates
anck relnted disclosires made by monagement.

Lonclusde on the appropridieress of management’s we of the gong coscern basis ol accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether o material umeerininty cxizis related to cvents or conditions that
iy ¢ast significant deubt on the Company’s ability to coatinue asa going concerm. [Fwe conclude that a
meaerinl uncerainty exists, we are required o dew pitention i our auditer’s report o the relaed
disclosures in the standalone financinl satements or, i such disclosures are madequate, 1w modify our
apinon. Our conchsions are hased on the sudit evidence olaained up o the date of our auditor's repart.
Howwever, future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease (o continue & & going concern.

Evaluate the sverall presentation, structure and content of the standulons financial statements., including
the disclesures, and whether the standalone financial sitements represent the underlying tronsactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair pregentation,

We communisite with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and hmang of the aadit and significan aadit findings. including any sipnificom defigiencies in inemal
cantryl that we identily during our audil

We alse provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonobly be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicoble, related
safegunnds,

Repurt on (hiber Legal and Regulaiory Requirements

(A} As required By the Companies (Auditors Repor) Order, 2006 ("he Order™) msued by the Central
Crovernment in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A a statement o
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 apd 4 of the Order

() Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repon thai:

ol We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
kowledge and belief were necessury for the pusposes of our atudit.

b)  Inour-opmbon, proper hooks of scotant &s required by law hive been Kept by the Company so far
as 1 appers from owr examimation of those books,

¢} The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statemert of profic and lass, the standatone staterment
of changes in equiry and the stardalons statement of cosh flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the boaks of aseaun,

d} In vur opinien, the aforesmd standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
undar section 133 of the A,

el O the basis of the written representalions received from the divectors ond 1aken an record by the

Hoard of Dinectars, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2009 from heing appointed
k@ director i terms of Section 164(2vof the Act

l/
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[ With respect to the adequacy ofthe Tnernal financial controls with reference 1o finoncial stacements
ol the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 10 our separate Report in

“Aannexiare BY.

2] Wih respect o the other motters W be ncluded in the Audiior's Report in sccordance with Rule
1l of ihe Companies (Audit end Audiors) Ruales, 2014, in vor epinion and 1o the best of our
imfprmalion and according o the explanations given 1 us:

i The Company has disclosed the impoct of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its standalone figancial sistements - Refer Mote 41 o the standalone
fimancial stakements.

i, The Company did nat have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts Tor which
there were any material foreseealile losses

it There were no amounils which were required o be transfened 1o the Investor Education and
Proweciion Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the standalone financiol statemients regarding holdings as well 55 denfings
in specified bank notes dusing the period from B November 2006 1o 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial staternents sinee they do not pertain 1o the financial veor ended
Al March 20009,

(B} Witls respect 10 the matter ta be included in the Auditar's Report under section 1907(16):

In our opinion and aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company 10 its direciors during the current year is in acosrdance with the provizions of Section
197 af the Act The remuneration paid to any director 15 net in excess of the Hmit lnid down under
Section 157 of the Aot The Ministry of Corparate A ffairs las not prescribed ather détails under
Bection |97(16) which are required 10 be commented opon by us,

FurBSR & Co, LLP
L kartered Aocoiantanns
Firnt's Registration Mo 2101 248W -1 00022

Place: Guragram .
Dhate: 29 July 201% rehip N, 054549

DTN Moo 190545408 AR ACIZI56




B5HA&Co. LLP

Annesure A referred to to the Independent Auditor’s report to the Members of Mrs, Bectors Foual
specialitics Limited for on the standalone financial statements the year enided 31 March 2019, we
repart that:

(i} () According w information and explanations given %o us, the Company hs maintained proper records
showing full partcuars, including quantitative detsils and sitsation of fixed assets (property, plant
pnd equipment and intengible assets),

ib) According 1o information and explanations given (0 us, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verilication of its fixed assets by which all the fixed asseis are physieally verified by 1he
management in a phased manner over a period of theee years. In accordance with this programme,
certain fixed ssscts were vesified during the year In our opinkon, the periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nisture of its assets. As
infarmed to we, no discrepancics have been noticed on such verification.

According 1o information and explanations given 1o us and on the bass of our examination of the
records of the Campany, the tithe deed of the immovable progeriics are held in the mme of the
Company except for the follewing:-

1Y

-

5. No Type of Location of Griss block of Met block of
Tmmrevalule Immovahle property as on 31 property u% on 31
property Properiy March 20149 Murch 2019
! (Hs. in millions) (Rs. in millions) |
i Frechold land Tahliwal, Himsaclod 3.07 17
Pradesh.
¥ | Building Moida, Uttar Pradesh 482 436

[ii} According to information and explanations given 1o us, the lvventorics, excepl goods in transit,
have been physically vesified by the monagement during e year. For woesds i ransit in respeat of
purchiase and sales of material, all material is substantially received or delivered until the date of
issuance of this répon. In cur opinion, the frequency of such verification is remsonable. Further. as
imformed to us, the discrepancies noticed on veri fieation between the physical stocks and the hook
records were not muterial,

(it According o information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans
secured or unsecured, to companies, firmes, limited Liability partnerships or other partics covered in
the register reguired under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Met’). Aocordingly.
paragraph ki) of the Order is pot applicable.

(v} Aceording to the information and explanations given 1o us @ on the basis of our examination of
the recards of the Compiny has not provided any loan, guaranice or security as speiled under
cection 185 of the Act, Further. the Company has complicd with the provisions of section |84 of the
At in relation b investiment made

{v] According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company hiis mot dccepled any
depiosits from the public in sccordance with the pravisions af sections T3 w 76 or any oiiver relevan
provisions of the Act and ihe males framed there under.

[/
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ivi] According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us, the Contral Government has not
preseribed far the maintenance of cost records under section |48 (1] of the Act Tor any goods sold
or services rendered by the company, Accordingly para 3 {vi) of the Order is not applicable 1 the
Campany

{vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of oor examinstion el
the records of vhe Company, amounts deducted’ acerued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” Site Insurance, Income tax,
Goods and Services Tax (*G5T" ), Duty of customs dnd other material statutory dues have generally
been regularly depasited during the year by the Convpany with the appropriate sutherities though
there hive been slight delays in deposit of income-tax, GST, wellare fiund, provident fund and the
emplovee state insurance in few cases though mol serious.

According 10 the information and explanations given 1o us, no undisputed amousis payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income lax, GST, Duty of customs and
ather matcrial statutory dues were in arrears as gt 31 Mareh 2019 for 2 period of more thal six
months from the dute they beeame payable.

The Company does not have Hability in respest of Service wax, Duty of excize, Sales tax and Value
nddedl tax since effective | July 2017, thess satutory dues have been subsuwimed into Goods and
Services Tax.

Also refer note 41{A ) wherein it is explained that on account of the unceriainty with respect o
the applicability of the Hon'ble Supreme Court judgement dated 28 February 201% on provident
fund matter, pending clarificmion from the department of Provident Fund, management bas not
recopnized and deposiied any additional provident fund amount with respect to the period prior o
28 February 2019,

i) Agcording to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax, GST,
| Sales 1ax, Service tox, Duty of excise, Duty of customs and Value added tax which have not been

- deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, excepl as mentioned below:

-
- Mame of the Mature Aiount | Amownt Perind s Fuorum where
I Siwtuie of Dues | disputed® | deposited | which amount | dispute i pending
| - {R=. in (Es. in relutes
' ernillion) milliom
ot Punjad Value Added | Sales nx 237 - 200 E- Deeputy Excise and

Tak Act, 2005 175 - 009-110 Taxution

3 {Commissiones.

L Ludhiana
Punjob Tax on Entry [ Entry thx 1.59 - 2 1-12 Fumnjab and

- of Ginods imio Local Haryana High
| Area Act, 200 | - Court, Chandigarh |
e Himachal Prichissh Entry tax .54 4633 2010-11 High Coun of

= Tux o Endry off 757 HiE-12 Himachal Pradesh
| Cicads into local 873 2012-13
M— grea Act. 2010 T4 2013-14

15.15 200415

| - 11.70 2015-16

-

-
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Muwme of the MNature Amount | Amount Periaad o Forum where
Slalule of Dues | disputed® | deposited | which smouni | dispuie is pending
{Rs. in (Hs. i relafes
millinn)| miliiam)
T.10 HAEe-17
02 N17-18
Himonchal Pradesh Sisles tax X 2005-046 WAT Tribunal of
Yalue Added Tax Himachal Pradesh
Act, 2005 oot
Littar Pradesh YWaloe | Sales fax 1ok - JHE-14 Depuny Excize and |
Added Tax Acr I .51 - J)1a-15 Taxution
2008 L oamimiEssioner,
Cionitmn Budh
£ Mg
Income Tax Income 5,73 3738 | 2007-08 (ALY} | Incomie Tax
A 1961 Tax .05 B0 | 200910 (AY.) | Appellate Tribaenal,
.00 20010-11 (AY.) | Chandigarh
.13 WI-121AY)
1.83 M3=14 (AY)
[ Tncame Tax Income o] - 2015-16{AY.) | Commissicner of
At 1961 Tax Incoime Tax
(Appeals),
Ludhians
*amount as per demand orders including interest and penally, wherever indicated in arder.
#adjusied against refund des,

(wili} According 10 the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given 1o us, the Company has not defaulied in repayment of loans or borrowing to its bankers or o
any financial institutions. The Company did not hive any outstanding dues to any debenture hobder.

{ix)  According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of vor examination ol

ixh

(%)

xii)

the records of the Company, the term loans uken by the Company has boen applied for the purposes
for which they were olmained. As informed 1o as, the Company has oot reised any moneys by way
of Initial public ofTer or further poblic offer (including debt instruments .

According to the infermation and explanations given o us, oo materisl fraud by the Company or an
the Company by i3 officers or employess has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination af
the recards of the Company, the managerial remuneration s been paid or provided by the Campany
in accordunce with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisiens of section 197 eread with
Schedule W 1o the Act.

According to-the informeation and explonations Liven Lo s, the Company s oot & Midli Company.
Accordingly, paragmph 3{xe) of the Coroder is not applicabie,

v
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(xifi}

xiv)

According to the information and explemditions given 1o us and on the Basis of i examimation of
reconids ol the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance wizth Section |77
wndd 188 of 1he Act, whers applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone firancial
statemmeenis, as roguired By the applicable acoouwniing standards.

Accurding to the imdormotion and explonstions given (o us, the Company has nol made any
preferentizl allotment ar private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the viear, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) ol Order 15 no applicablc,

(xv)  According to the mformation and explanations given 10 us; the Company has oot entered into any
nof=cach ransactiont with the directors or parsnns ronmeci=d with them. -I'h.ﬁ;m'r.l.in-ghl.' L 3wl
of the Order s mot applicable to the Costpany.

(x¥i)  According to the infermation and explanaiions given to us; the Company s not required o be
regisiered umider Scctisn d3-TA of the Reserve Bank of Indin Acr, 1934,

ForBS R & Co. LLFP
e teresd Aceobnictiny
Firm Begistrmtion Mog: 101248 WAW-100622
Rajiv
Place: Gurugram Pars,
Drate: 29 July 2019 Bemberthip Neo.; (K455

HEAT UBIN Noo: 190045400 A AATIZ356
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Annexvure B to the Independent Auditor's report on the standalone Moancial statements ol Mira.
Bectors Food Specialities Limited for the period ended 31 March 2015,

Report on the internal financial controls with refereace o the aforesaid standalome financial
statements nnder Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Scetion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 [Referred to
in paragraph 6(BWM) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of anr
report of even date)

Drpinkon

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements ol Mrs. Reciors Food
Specialitios Limited (“the Company™) a5 of 31 March 2019 in conjunctinn with owr awdit of the standalone
financinl siatements of the Company for the vear ended on that date

I o opinkon, the Company has, in all matesial respects, adequate interal financiol controls with neference
to financial staternents and such internal findncial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements criteria sstublished by the
Company considering the éssential components of internal contral stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Imternal Financial Confrok Over Financial Reporting issved by the Instirute of Chartered Accountants of

India {the “Cuidance Mote™),

Management’s Respoasibility for Tnternal Financial Controls

The Company's managerent and the Beard of Directors are responsthle fisr establishing and mainaining
imtermal financial controle based on the infernal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essenitial components of internal control stated in the
Guicanee Note, These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
iriternal Financial controls that were operating affectively for ensuring the ardesly and efficient conwluct of
ity husiness, inchiding adherence 1o company’s policies, the afeguarding of its assers, the prevention and
detection of fiauds and errors, the sccursey and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of relisble financial information, as required ander the Companies Act, 2013 (herzinufler
referred toas “the Act™)

Auditor's Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express wh opinion on the Company’s intermal fimanckal controls with relerence o
financiol stifements based on eur andiv. We condueted dur audit in scpordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143( 10) of the Act, to the extent applicable o an oudit
of internal fimancial controls with reference 1o (inancial stmements. Those Stnmdards and the Guidance Mo
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the sudil © ghigin reasonable
wsdrance abeut whether adequate internal fnancinl controls with refereace to fimancial stalemens were
astablished mod mainialied and whether such controls opernted effectively in all material respects

Our audit fnvolves performing procodures 1o obtain audit evidence abou the adequacy of the internal
firicial conrols with Teference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
cternal financial contrels with reference 1o financial statéments included obtaining an understanding of
snch inernal francial controls, asseszing the risk that o material weakness euisss, and testing g evalumiing
the design nnd operating effectiveness of interal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures
seleered depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of matenial misstalement
af the standalone financial statements, whether due (o Traud or error.

E_‘_.




BSAR&Co LLP

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned s sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our
wisdit oginion an the Company s internil financial controls with reference 1o financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference (o Financisl Statements

A company's interial financial controls wath reference 1o fmancial statenents & o process designed to
provide reasonable assurange regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
stuterments for external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) permin 10 the maintemnce of records that, in rensenable detall, accuraiely and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the asscis of the company: {1} provide reasonable sssuramee tha
tansisciions are Tecorded 83 necessary to permit preparaiion of finuncial satements in accordance with
wenerully accepled accounting principies, and thit receipts and expendinures of the company are being mads
oily in accerdance with authoriztions of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasomnble mssurnnce pepording prevention or fimely detection of unauthorized scquisition, use, or
dizposition of the company's assets that could have a material ¢ffect on the financial statements.

Inhierent Limitations of Internal Financial contrals with Reference (o Financial Statements

fecause af the inkerent limitations of intermal finencisl contrals with reference 1o financial statements,
including the possibility of vollusion or improper management override of conitrods, material missiatements
dise to error of fraud may oceur and not be detected. Alse, projections of any evaluation of the nternal
finmcial controls with reference 1o financial statements o future periods are subject to the risk tht the
internal financial controls with reference to financial suasements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorge.

FarB5S R & Co. LLP
Chartervd Acooumians
Firm's Regisiration Mg, 10 L 240 W= 22

Flace: Gurugnim
Dhate: 29 July 2019

1AL UBIN Mo 1994542 AAAACIZ350
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Mrs. Beetors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PR1995PLO03341T)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Reporting entity

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited referred to as “the Company™ is domiciled in India. The
Company’s registered office is at Theing Road, Phillaur- 144410, Punjab, India. The Company is
engaged in the basiness of manufacturing and distribution of food products. The Company caters to
both domestic and export markets.

Significant Accounting Policies

he Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all perinds presented in the
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These standalene Mnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the
Companies (India Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2016 notified under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, {the “Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policics have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting stondard
i5 initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in ase.

These standalone Ninancial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 29 July 2019,

Effective 1 April 2017, the Company had adopted the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried
out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with | April
2016 as the transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally
accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companics
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (1GAAP). which was the previous GAAP,

i Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. which is the Company ‘s functionsl currency,
All amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions, upto two places of decimal, unbess otherwise
stated.
i) Basly of meaurement
The fimancial seements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following:
Defined benefit liability/(assets): Fair value of the plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations
—  Certain firancial assets and liabilities {including derivative instruments): measured at fair value

- Share-based payments: measured at fair value of share based payments.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer o hability in an

orderly transaction hetween markel participants at the mens e, ‘[hdl fair valug measurement

\ IL:;"-"-!-'.I'.-.)I /."
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899FB1995PLCO3341T)
Nodes to standalone fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

is hased on the presumption that the transaction to sefl the asser or transfer the liability takes place

) b bt

efther -
. In the principal market for the asset or lability, or
1 . In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or linbility

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tof by the Company.

All assets and lishilities for which fair value & measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as @ whole-

~ Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities,

-~ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are oheervable for the asset or
liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

~ Level 3: inputs for the asset or hiability that are not based on observable market datar
{unobservable inputs).

iy Use oof fudgments amnd exiimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the
financial staterments are prudent and reasonable. Acal results may differ from these estimates,

Estinutes and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates ane
recognised prospectively.

Siadgenrenis

Information bout the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amourits recognised in the financial statements have been given below:

_  Note 49 . classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the
assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding:

—  Note 43 - classification of leases into linance and operating lease;

—  MNote 43 - lepses: whether an arrangement contains lease,

Assumprions el estimation itceriainites

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertaintics thit have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the Financial staterments for the every period ended is included below:

~ Note3 &S5 - useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets;

—  Note 46 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumplions;
Mote 4% - fair value of share hased payments;

—  Note 41 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies;

- ‘Note 4% - impairment of financial assets;

- Note 49 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments.

- Mote |2 —write down of inventories — | <5 G

— Note 2m, 10 and 23 - recognition of tax expense includifigdetetred availabiity of futime
taxable profits against which tax losses carried forward'din be usedy 5§ | |, et Y9
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB199SPLC03MIT)
Notes to standalone Minancial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2009

el

Carrent versus pon-current classification

A number of the Company's accounting policies and ligbilities as current and pon-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet hased on current and non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it 5

~  Expected to be realized or mtended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele.

—  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

—  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

~  Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setthe a Liability for
at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

Al other assets are classified a2 non-current,

A liability 1s treated a8 current when:

= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

— It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

— It is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the scitlement of the liability Tor at least twelve months
afier the reporting period.

All other linbilities are classified as non-current.

Dieferned tax liabilities are classified as non-current habilives.
The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

liems of properiy, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less sccumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. it any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impornt
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the ftem to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

I significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as a scparaie items {major components ) of property, plant and equipment.

Major machinery spares pans are classified as property. plant amd equipment when they are expecied
to be utilized over more than one period. Other spares are carried as inventory and recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as and when consumed,

Any gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss,

The cost of properny. plant and equipment not re&d;.- for their intended use is recorded as capital
wirk-in-progress i B i
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB1995FLCO3341T)
Notes {0 standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

and equipment and that are attributable 10 construction sctivity in general and can be allocacd 1o
specific property, plant and equipment are included in capital work-in-progress.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognized as at | April 2016 as per the previous GAAP and use that
ag the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent Measn rement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

jii. Depreciation

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is caleulated on o siraight line basis using the mtes
based on the uselul lives prescribed as per Part C of schedule 1L, of the Companies Act 2013 except
in case of certain plant and equipment such as molds, crates and pallets where the management has
assessed useful life as 3 years based on internal technical evaluation.

Leasehold land is amortised pro-raia over the lease period on a straight line basis.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on & pro-rata basis Le. from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depregiation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible asseis

Intangible nssets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of
Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly atiributable cost of brinzing the item o
its working condition for its intended use. Afier initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its
cost less any accumulated amartisation and any accumulated impatmment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future econom ic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
a% incurred.

Estimated useful life of the software is considered as 5 years,

Amaortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjissied, if appropriate,

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecogrition of an imangible asset, measured as the
difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Siatement of Profit and Loss when the nsset is derecognized.

Advanices paid towards acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each period end date, are shown
under other non-curtent assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the period end, are
shown as intangible asset under development.
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Mirs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CTN: UT4899PB1995PLCI33417)
Motes to standalone financial statements for the yeur ended 31 March 2019

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has cleced to contimee with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as at | April 2016 as per the previous GAAP and use that as the deemed
cost of the Intangible assets.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated into the respective functional curmency of the Company
at the exchanae rates at the dates of the transactions,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are mieasured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated mto the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate a1 the date of the ransaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs ate interest and other costs {including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
herrowings 1o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in conpection
with the borrwing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acguisition or construction of an
asse! which necessarily take a substantial period of time o get ready for their intended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset, Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense m the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Short-term emplovee bengfits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A leability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive abligation o pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employes, and the obligation can be estimted

reliably,
Share-based pavenent fransaotions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards pronted to employees is
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
emplovees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
an the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting condrtions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number
of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

Past-emplaymeni benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions mto a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts, The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
emplovee benefit expense in the Statement of Profi 55 in the periods during which the related

services nre rendered by emplovess, {T;{Etm '5""{-}.%
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Mirs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PR1 FESPLCO3341T)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Defined

A defined berefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Crrafnity

The Company s net obligation in respeet of detined benefit plans is caleulated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future beefit that employees have camed in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The Plan is funded with an Insurance Company in the form of insurunce policy. The calculation of
defined benefit obligation is performed snnually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
methed. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised assetl is
limited to the present value of economic benelits available in the form of any fumre refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan {*the asset ceiling”). In order 1o calculate the present
value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recegnised in Other Comprehensive Income {OCH. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the pertod by applving the discoun rte
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined beneflt liability (asser), taking imo account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as o result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Eher fong rerm employvee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve muonths after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a Habidity at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets, if amy out
of which the obligations are expected to be settled. The cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out ol each Balance Sheet
date Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the pericd in which
they oeour.

Revenue

a) Sale of goads

The Company earns revenise primarily from business of manufacturing and distribution of food

products.

Effective | April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 "*Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much
and when revente is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11
Construction Contracts, The Company has sdopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect
method. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the financial statements

af the Company.

those products or Services.
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PBI9USPLCO3341T)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
10 the eustomer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible retum
of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods
and the amount of revenue can be measured relisbly. Revenue s measured net of returns, trade
discounts and volume robates.

Revenue includes excise duty and are shown net of sales tax. value added tax and goods and
services tax.

by Rendering of services

Revenue in respect of sale of services is recognised on i sccrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements.

e} Inlerest income
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross camving amount of a financial asset, Interest income is
included under the head “other income™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss

dy Dhividend inceme
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend 5 established
which is generally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

el Contract assets
A eontract assef is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred o the

customer, 1 the Company performs by transferring goods or services 1o a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eirned
consideration that i conditional.

fi  Contract labilities
A contract lishility is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. 1f
4 customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods of services 1o the customer, &
contract lisbility is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
carlier). Contract liakilitics are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contruel.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants for capital assets are recognised initially as defemed income at fair value when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditicns
associated with the grant; they are then recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other income on
a svslematic basis.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss as other operating income on a systematic basis in the periods in which such expenses are
recognized.

Inventories
st and net realisable value after

Matrrirls and-other. items
i -"‘\3";-:' ;
o

Raw materials. stores and spares are valued al the lowe
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where

[#

T
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialitics Limited (CIN; UT4899PB1995PLCO33417)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

beld for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost it the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected 1o be soid at or above cost

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, Goods in transit are valued at cost
excluding import duties. Cost of raw materials. components and stores and spares is determined on
weighted average cost basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods arc valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes direct materials and labor and & proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capagity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The Company has a policy for writing off the inventory of finished goods which is more than %0
days old at vear end

Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditire required
v settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used 1o determine
the present value is a pre-tax mte that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of tme is
recopnised &s interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations thit arise from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as 2 contingent lability, unless the
probability of cutflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed where an inflow of
econcmic benefit is probable.

Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
libility or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign exchange forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host contract, ete,

I} Financial assets

f Imirtal recogmition and measarement

The Company mnitially recognises financial assets on the date on which they are originated. The
Company recognises the financial assets on the trade date, which is the date on which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the I
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: U74899PB199SPLOO3341T)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 20019

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
gequisition of the finrancial asset except assets measured an fair value through profit or loss

i Classifications and suhyequent measurement

Classifications

The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at cither amontised cost or fair
value depending on the Company s business mode! for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flow charactenistics of the financial assets,

iness model gssessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
o managementl.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely pavments ol principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
fnancial asset contains a contractunl term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
Mows such that it would not meet this condition,

Debit irixtricnrent of cvarfied coxl

A financial asset is measered at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and §s no
desipnated a5 at Fair value though Profit and Loss (FVTPL):
~  itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contraciual
cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the firancial assot give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measuned at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (*EIR" ) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amaortization
is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss,

Debe inserament af fair vatue tdrough Other Comprelensive Income (F1VCCT)
A fmancial asset s measured at FVOCT only if both of the following conditions are met:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

= the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Affter initial measurement, such financial sssets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (QCH). Inteérest income is recognised basis EIR
method and the losses ansing from Expected Credit Lmses I:.CL_] Impmrmeut e rrcugnmd in the
profit or loss. i,
rn'." P i e |
||IF-"..|‘.'|.'|. Ay f |
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PBI9SPLOMIIAT)
Motes o standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Debt insirament of fair value throuwgeh Profir and Loss (FYTPL)

Any debt instrament, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as ol amortized cost or as
FVOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.

Equaty tnstrumienis
All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fived deposits are measured at fair value.

Equity instruments which are held for rading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company decides to classifty the same erther as at FVTOUT or FYTPL. The Company
makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irmevocable.

If the Company decides 1o classify an equity instrument as a1t FVTOCT, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI There i3 no recycling of the amounts
from OC1 10 P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or koss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profit and Loss.

Investments in tax free bonds and Fixed deposits ane measured st amortised cost.

it Reclassiffcation of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their inital recognition, except in the period after the
Company changes its business mode! for managing financial assets.

v Derecognition of franclal assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a Goancwl asset or pant of 2 Company of similar
finmncial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company®s Balance Sheet) when:

- The rights o receive cashi Mlows from the asset have expired, or

—  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material defay to a third party under a
"pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
suhstantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of the asset

vl Tmpaivment of finenclal aeseis

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expecied credit losses assocated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCT debrt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitied by Ind AS
H Financial Testrerrents; which requires expected lifetime losses o be recognised from the initial
recognition of the rade receivahles,
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB1995PLC0O33417)
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

viy Impatrment of non-finarcial assets

The Company non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date 1o determine whether there is any indication of impairment. [f any such indication exists,
then the assel’s recoverable amount i5 estimated. For impairment testing. assets that do not generate
independent cash inflows are grouped together into a cash-generating unit (CGU ). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of ather assets or CGL s,

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value loss costs 1o sell,
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash fows, discounted 10 their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate thar reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific 1w the CGLU.

Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised for an asset in prioe accounting periods may no longer exist or may have
decreased. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s camrying dmount does not exceed

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortizatien, if no
impairment koss had been recognised,

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carmying amount of the asset over il
remaining useful life.

2y  Financial liabilitics
£ Initied recopnition and meavurennent

Financial liabilities are classified, st initial recognition, as finencial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss, amortised cost, as appropriaie.

All financial liabilities are recognised mitially at fair valoe and. in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs,

#y Classification and subsequent measurament
The mcasurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured of amortised cost

A frer initial recognition, financial liabilities are amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process,

fit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition az at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the prafit or loss.
i} Derecognition of financial labifitles

The Company derecognises o financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT489PB199SPLC033417)
MNotes to standalone financial statements for the yvesr ended 31 March 20019

3) (Mfsetting of Mnancial instraments

Finencial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the et amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
sefthe on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously ( “the affset criteria’),

4)  Derivative nuocial instrumenis

The Company holds derivative financtal instruments 1o hedge its foreign currency exposures.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host
gonfract 15 mot 3 fmandial asset and certain Criteria are met,

Derrvatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured 1o their fair valee at the end of cach reporting period. The Company enters
into-certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as bedges. Such contracts are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ { losses),

Income taxes

-
S

Income tax comprises current and deferved tax. 1t is recognised in the Siatement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that il relates 1o o business combination or to an ftem recognised directly in equity

of i other comprehensive income.

i I_.J 1_4 I_.- |._.d lji I_J L.-

i Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payvable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the yesr and any adjustment 1o the tax pavable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tnx amount expected to be paid or received
after considening the uncertainty, i any, related to income axes. 1t is measured wsing tax rates
{and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

|

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it 15 intended o realise the asset and settle the liability
on a net basis or simultanecusly,

il. Deferred iax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities
in the Balance Sheet and the cormgsponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible iemporary differences to the extent that it
iz probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and lLabilities are not recognised if the temporany
difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition {(other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed ot each Balance Sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient tuxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax aszets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that sre expected 10 apply in the
perind in which the liability iz settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enncted or substantively enacted by the Balance Shegt dute, The rﬁemtﬁ"-
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax co Eia would rn-h[w from l'f't‘”"-

! \‘Qif’
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CTN: UT4899FPB1995P LOC033417)
Noies to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

manner in which the Company expects, at the repoming date, t recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilitics and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a met basis

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate o ilems that are recagnisad in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directhy
in equity respectively.

iii. Minimum Alternative tax

Minimum Allermative tax ('MAT) under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised
as cument tax in profit or loss. The credit available under the Act in nespect of MAT paid is
adjusted from deferred tax liability only when and to the extent there s convincing evidence
that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can
be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liabiliy. MAT eredit recognised adjusted
from deferred tax liability is reviewed nt each balance sheet date and written down to the extent
the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer eXists.

m} Leases

Ditermining whether an greangement contains a lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the ingeption of the lease. The amangement, is, or contains, & lease it falfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specified asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
io wse the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

AL ingeption or on reassessment ol an arrangement that contains a lease, the Company scparates
payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. Subsequently, the liability is reduced as
pavments are made and an imputed finance cost on the lisbility is recognised using the Company’s
incremental bormowing rate.

Where the Company ix the Lesses!

Finance leases, which effectively transfer o the Company substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease lerm al the fower
af the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Leasc payments
are wpportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as lo achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability. Finance charges are recognized as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Lease mansgement fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalized,

A leased asse is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the assel based on internal
technical evaluation or the vseful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act. 2013,
However, if thers is no ressonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of
the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straighi-ling basis over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset, the lease term or the useful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule 11 of
the Companies Act, 2013. {
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PRI99SPLCOI3IT)
Notes lo standalone financial sintements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Leases. where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item. are classified as operating leases. Opernting lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss on o straight-line basis over the lease term,

Where the Company i the lessor:

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Company apportions [ease
rentals between the principal repayment and interest income so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of
retm on the net investment outstanding in respeet of the finance lease, The interest income is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs,
cic. are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Lenses in which the Company does not transfer substantinlly all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Assers subject 1 operating leases are included in fixed assets.
Lease income o an operting lease is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a stmight-line
basis over the lease term, Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an éxpense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, Initial direct costs such ds legal costs, brokerage cosis, ete. are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reporied in a manner consisten! with the mtemal reporting prov ided to the chiel
operating decision maker,

The Boeard of Directors of the Company have been identified as being the Chief operating decision
maker by the management of the Company. Refer note 42 for segment information presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in band and shon-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Standards issoed but not vet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) throogh Companies (Indmn  Accountmg  Standards)
Amendmeni Rules, 2019 and Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
has notified the following new and amendments to Ind AS which the Company has not applied as they
are effective from | April 2019:

Ind AS 116, Leaves

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing feases standard. Ind AS 17 Leases (Ind AS |7} and sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and
Lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee sccounting model for lessees, A lessee recognises
present value of the lease payment {discounted using incremental borrowing rate} as right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying ssset and a lease liahility representing its abligation 1o make
lease payments and lease rent expense will be replaced with the amortization of right-of use-asset and
imterest accrued on lease Hability, The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees ond will have consequential impact on cash flows uuh:gnrﬁ as well. The new standard
substantially carmries forwand the lessor accounting l':qmr:mﬂlld- g 5 [7.
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB1995PLCO3341T)
Naodex to standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2009

The Company will adopt Ind AS 116 effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting new smndard will be
recognized as an adjustment 1o the opening balance of retained earmings at | Apnl 2019, with no
restatement of comparative information.

For nature of lease arrangements, refer note 43 of the financial statements. The company has completed
an initial asscasment of the potential impact on its inancial statements but has not yet completed its
detailed assessment. The quantitative impact of adoption of Ind AS |16 on the financial statements in
the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as at present.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and
unceriainry over income @x ireatments)

The amendment relating 1o income tax consequences of dividend clurify that an entity shall recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
pecording 10 where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company
does not expect any impact from this pronouncement, It is relevant to note that the amendment does not
amend situations where the entity pays a tax on dividend which s effectively a portion of dividends
paid to wxation authorities on behalf of shareholders, Such amount paid or payable to taxation
authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend. in accordance with Ind AS 12,

The amendment 1o Appendix T of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
whien there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12, It outlines the following: (1) the
entity has to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately
or whether some can be considered together, The decision should be bazed on the approach which
provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the tation
authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3] entity
has 1o consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepiing the tax treatment and the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused lax credis and tax rates
would depend upon the probability. The Company does not expect any significant impact of the
amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order
1o allow measurement at amorntised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fuir value through
other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments, The Company does
not expect this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Cuortailment or Settlement

I'he amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement cCours, it is mandatory that
the current service cost and the net interest for the period afier the re-measurement are determined using
the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included 1o clarify
the effect of a plan amendment. curtailment or seftlement on the requirements regarding the asset
eeiling. The Company does not expect this amendment 1o have any significant impact on its financial
stuternents.




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB1995PLCRBIEINT)
Motes to stundalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Cosis

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes pan of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The Company does not expect
anv impact from this amendment.

Ind AS 28 — Long-term Inferests in Associales and Joint Ventures

T'he amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long-term interests
in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture bt
to which the equity methed is not applied. The Company does not expect any impact from this
amendment.
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DiLF Cyis City, Phasa - 1] Faix, +97 174 235 B33
Cunugram - 122 002, Inda

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limined

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Finuncial Statements
L. Opinion

We have sudited the consolidated financial statements of Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited
{heremafler refemed to as the “Holding Company™) and it subsidiaries (Holding Company and s
subsidiaries. together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate. which comprise the Consolidated
Balnnce Sheet as a1 31 March 2019, and the consoliiated statement of profit and boss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity snd consalidated siatement of cash
flows fiw the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, ineluding o summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herzinafter referred fo as the
“consolidated Nnancial stmements)

i our opinion and te the best of our information and according 1o the explonations given to us, and hased an
the considerntion of reports of other auditor*s on separate finoncial stalement of such subsidiarics and an
associnte, as were audited by the other auditor’s, the aforesaid consolidared finaneial statements give the
infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Aet™) In the manner so required and give a true and Eair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affaies of ihe Group and its adseciate a5 at 31 March 2019, of its consalidated profit and other comprehensive
fcomie, conselidated changes in equity =nd consolidated cash Nows for the vear then ended,

2. Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Siandards on Auditing (5As) specitied under section 143100
ol the Act. Our respansibilities under those SAs are further described in the duditor s Responsibilities for te
Awelir af the Consolidated Fincnciol Stelements section of our report. We sre independent of the Groap and
its mssociate in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charered Aceountants of India,
and we have [ulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Ac. We
believe thal the awdit evidence we have obtained & sufficient and appropriste o provide a basis for our
GpiToL,

3. (Uther Information

Mhe Holding Company s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other infosmation, The
other information comprises the information included in the holding Company”s Directors report, but does
Aot include the financial statements and our awditor’s report therean, The Dhrectors Regon §s expected (o be
e avaitable after the date of this aoditor s report,

Chur epinien on the consolidated financial stalements dogs ol cover the ather information and we do nes
express any form of assurmnee eorslusion thereon,
L_--.
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In eonnection with our nudit of the consolidated financial statements, our respomsibility is to read the other
infarmation identified ubove when o becomes available and, in deing so, consider whether the ather
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or atherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, hased on the work we have performed and
based on the work domse’ auclit report of other poditer’s, we conelude that there is a material oo estatement of
this ether information, we are reguired to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

4. Responsibilities of Management amd Those Charged with Governance for the Conselidated
Financhal Statcments

e Holding Company’s management and Board of Directoss are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financinl statements in term of the reguirements of the Act thal give a true
and fair view of the consolidated stne of affuirs, consolidsted profit’ loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidsted statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and iis associate in
accordance with the accounting principles generally sceepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standands (Ind A8} specified undersection 133 of the Act, The respective Board of Directars of the Companies
included in the Group and its associate are responsible for mointenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with fhe provisions of the Act for saleguarding the atsets of the Grows and its associate and for
preventing and detecting frawds and other irregularities; the selectson and application of appropriate acoounting
pulicies; making judpments and estimates that are reasomable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
i itenance of sdecuat intemal fnancial conrols, that were operating ¢ffectively for ensuring aceuracy and
completeness of the accountmg records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial stements that give a true wnd fair view and are free from material misstarement, whether due 1o
fraad or error, which have been used for the puipese of preparstion of the consolidated financial siements by
the Diirectors of the Holding Compainy, as afoeesald.

In preparing the consolidared fimamcinl statements, the respective manseement and Board of Directors of the
entities included in the Groug and s associate are responsible for assessing the abilicy of each Company 10
comtinue us o going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going
goncem basis of accounting unless management either intends to Hguidate the entities or 1o cease opermtions,
i has nd renfistic altermative but 1o do so

The respective management and Bosrd of Directors of the Companies included in the Growp and its associate
are responsible for oversesing the financial neporting progess of each company.

5 Auditor's Respoensibilitics for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Diur objectives are 1o pbtain reasommble assamnce about whether the consolidated financial simements as a
whike are free from material misstatement, whether dug to frand or error, and 1o issue anawditor’s report that
includes out opinlon. Beasonable assurance is a high level of assumnce, but i3 nol @ guacantee that an sodit
conducted in accardance with SA% will always detect o material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenls
ean anse from fraud or errar and are consadersd material i, individually or in the aggregste, they conld
renzonithly be expecied to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
limancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise profcssional judgment and maintuin professional
skepticism throughoat the andic. We also

},g
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¢ |dentify and assess the riske of maoterial misstatermnent of the consolidated finnneial statements, whether
due o fromd of emor, design and perform oudit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obiain audit
evidence thae is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our opinion. The rigk of not detacting a
miaterial misstatement resulting from framd is higher than for one resulting from error, 35 fraud may invelve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obizin an understanding of internal comtrol relevant 1o the audit in order to design andit procedures that
wre mppropriste in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)01) of the Act. we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequete imternal financial controls with reference 1o
financinl stasements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and the réeasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of acenunting in
preparation of consolidated financial staements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainmy exists refated o evems or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. [{ we conclude that a material uncenainy exists, we are required 1o
draw allention in our uditor's report 1o the related disclasures in the consolidated financial stuements or,
if such disclosures are imadequate, to modify our apinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up 1o the date of our sudiior's report. However. future cvents or conditions may case the Group
i s associate to cease to continue & & going concern.

= Evalume the overall presentation, structure and cament of the consclidated financial statements, including
the diselosures. and whether the consalidated finoneial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events bna manner hat schieves fsir presentation.

= Obtain sufficien appropeiate sudit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associate 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
of which we are the independemt auditors. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of financial information of such entities, For the other entities incloded in the
consolidated financial staternents, which have been audited by other auditors, uch other auditors remain
responsible for the directlon, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them, We remain
salely respansible for our andit opinion. Our responsibilites in this regard are funher described in para ()
of the section ttled *Other Mugters™ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the corsideration of audit repart of the ather
wuditors referred in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a badis for
o sl it ppanion on the consolidated financial staemems.

We communicnte with those charged with governence of the Holding Company and of the enities included
in the. consolidited financial staternents of which we are the independent oudiiors regarding. among other
matiers, the planned scape and timing of the medit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we idemily during our-audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with o statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requiremimts regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matiers that
may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence. and where applicable. related safeguands,

\~
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her Matters

We did nor audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose fnancial sEtements reflect toial
assers of Ba311.06 Million as at 31 March 2019, total reveraes of Bs. 480,12 Million and net cash
outflows amounting o Rs, 2.60 Million for the vear ended on that dute, as corsidered in the consolidated
financial statemenis. The consafidated Mnancial stafements also include the Group's share of net profit
of Rs. (AR Million for the veor ended 31 Muarch 2019, a5 eonsidersd In the consolidated Rnancial
slatemenis, in respect of an associste, whose Bnpnciol statemenss have nol been oudited by as. These
finamcial starements hove been audited by oher auditors whose reports has béen famished o us by the
Mariagement and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so for as it relates 1o the
amounts and disclosures included in respoct of these subsidiaries and an pssociate, and cur report in
teema of sub-section (1) of Section 147 of the Act, in so far as i relates 1o the aferesiid subsidigries and
an associate is bnsed solely on the audit reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidaled financial staements, and our seport on Other Lepal and Regulatory
Reguirements below, is not modified in respect of the above mutiers with respect to our reliance on the work
diome and the report of the other auditors

7.

Report on Oiher Legal and Regalatory Requiremenis

A, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considerntion ol repor af
the gaher suditors o separate financial satements ol subsidiaries and an associae, which are
companies incorposated in Indio, as noted in the "Other Motters' paragraph, we report, 1o fhe extem
apphicable, thes

al We hove sought and obsained all the information and explanations which to the bestof our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our sudiy of the aforesaid consolidated financial
BRLEICIBETIR

hj In owur epinion. proper books of account as required by law relating o preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

o The consalidated balance sheet, the consalidated =statememt of profit and loss, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the conselidated statement of cash Flows
denlt with by this Report ane m agreement with the relevant books of aceount maintained for
the purpase of preparation of the eonsolidated financial statements.

dy In our opimien, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

e} On the hasis of the written representations recerved from the directors of the Holding
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
repors of the statutery auditors of its subsidiary companies and an associate, which are
campanics incorporated in India, none of the direciors of the Group companics and it
assoviate. which are companies incorporated in [ndia, is disqualified as on 31 March 2019
from being appointed as a director of that company in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

f} With respect o the adeguacy of imternal financial controls with reference o financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and an associte, which are
companics incorporaied in India and the operating effectiveness of stich controls, refer 1o our
scparate report in “Annexure A" which is based on the auditor's report of Holding company,
its subsidiary compuanies and 11§ associate company

=
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With respect to the other maiters 10 be included i the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Fule 11
of the Companizs { Audit and Auditors ) Rules, 2004, i aur opinien and to the best of cur information
andl gecording (o the explanations given 1o us and based on the cansideration of the reports of the
other suditors on separate finsncial statements ol the sobsidindes amd an associate, which are
enmpamies meorporated in India, as noted i the *Other Matter' pacsgrph:

The consolidated financial statements diselose the imgact ol pending litigations as at 31 March
2019 on the consobidated financial position of the Group and (15 assaciate. FRefer Mote 41 tothe
consnlidated financial statements.

The Giroup and its associnte did net hove any maienal foreseeable losses on lopg-term condracis
meluding derivative contracis during the vear ended 31 March 2004,

There were no amounts which wene required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group and its assockite,

The disclssures in the consolidated financial statements regarding boldings as well as dealings
i specificd bonk notes during the pesicd fram 8 Movemiber 2006 we 30 December 2006 bave not
been masde in the financial atatements since they do pot pestain w the [Tnancial year ended 31
Mlprch 2009

C. With respect 1o ez matter (o be Included inthe Asditgs report under section 197 18):

In our spinion ond according to the informaticn and explanations given 1o us and based on the reporis
of the sumtory swdies of such subsidiary companies ind an associale, which were not audied by s,
the rermuneration paid during the corrent yeor by the Holding Company. subsidiary companies amd an
assdbite cormpany’ (o jts directors i in accordance with ihe provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company is not in excess of the limit inid dewn uncler
Bection |97 of the Act, The Ministry of Corporate A ffairs bes not preseribed other details under Section
197016} which are requined 1o be commented upon by us.

ForBSH & Co. LLP
Claartered Acooumianrs
Firin Regisiralion Mo 101 248%W /W 100022
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Annesure A to the Independent Auditor's report on the consolidated Mnancial sttements of M
Bectors Food Specialities Limited for the period ended 31 March 2019

Heport on fhe interngl finsncial controls with refercace to the aforesald consolldated (nancial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2003 [Heferred to
in puragraph TLANT under *Keport on Other Legal and Hegultory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

{hpimion

In conjunction with oir audit of the consalidated Ind AS financial stifements of Mrs, Bectors Food
Specimiithes Limited (“the Holding Company™) as of and fof the vearended 3 1 March 20018, we hoive medied
the imtermal financial controls with reference 1o consolidated Ind AS Anancial ststements of the Halding

Company, its subsidiary companies and an associate, which are companies incorpocated in India; s of that
date

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary
companies and an associale company, have, it all material respects, adeguate imernal financial controls
with reference 1o consolidated fimancial statements and such intemal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2019, based an the internal financial controls with reference 10 consolidated
fimancial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of soch
interngl controls stated in the Guidance Note o Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finuncial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indi (the “Guidance Mote™),

Manapement's Hesponsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary compantes and an assaciate,
which are companies incorporated in Indio, are responsible for establishing and maintaining frternal
fimancial controls based on the imternal controls with reference (o consolidoted financial statemenss criterio
cstablished by the respective Company considering the estential components of intemal control stated in
the Guddance Mote on Awdit of Intemal Financial Confrols over Finencinl Reporting (the "Guidance Nose")
issued by the Instiiuge of Chartered Adcountanis of India (*ICA1™) These responsibilitics include the desian,
implementation and maintenance of adegquate imternal linancial controls that were operating effectively for
enssting the onderiy and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 10 respective company’s
policies, the safegisanding of its pssets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the securacy and
completeness of the accouting recosds, und the thimely preparation of reliable financial mformation, as
required under the Act,

Auditer’s Responsibiliiy

Our responsibility is tooexpress an opinion on the mternal financial controls with reference 1o comsalidated
financial stvements based ononraodin. We conducted oor audit in accordsnce with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing. prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an wdi
of internal fimancial controls with reference to conzolidated financtal eiatements. Thoee Stundarde and the
Guidance Mote require thut we comply with ethical requirements and plon and perform the audit o obtain
reasonnble assuramce abou whether adequnte imternal fnancial contrals with reference 10 consobidated
financial statemenis were established and manitained amd i1 such controls n-F:ru.I.q] |.'|T|:|:Ii1'|:|}' mnall maienal
nospecis,

Our medlt invelves. performing procedures o obain audic evidence about the wdequacy of the intemal
Financial controls with reference 1o comsalidmed fmancial statements and their operating efectiveness, Oor
gudit of intemal mancial controls with reference to consolidaied fnancial siaienenis included obiming

1‘.
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an understanding of intermal faamial controls with reference to consolidated financial statcments, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, mnd testing and evalunting the design and operating effectiveness
of the intemal comtrols based on the assessed nsk. The procedures selected depend on the auditer's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financinl
saternenis, whether due to fraud or error. We believe thst the sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audil opinion on the interal financial contrals with reference 1o
consolidated financial siatements.

Meaning of Intermal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Finpneial Statements

A ocormpany's internal financinl condrols with reference to consolidated financal statements 5 0 process
dessgned to provide reasonable assamance regarding the reliability of financial reponting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally sccepted accounting principles.
A company's mternal fnancial controls with reference 1o consolidated financial statements inglsdes those
policies and procedures thit (1) periain to the mointerance of records thay, in reasonable desail, sccurasely
and fairly reflect e wanssoions and dispositons of the azsels of the company; (23 provide reasonable
assurance thal ranssctions are recorded a5 necessary (00 permil prepavation of fnancial starements in
accordance with generslly accepled sccounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
compuny are being made only in accerdance with suwthorizatiens of mansgement and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance reganding prevention or timely detection of wnauthorized
stguisition. use, or dispesition of the company's assets that could have o material effect on the consolidated
firmncial staleiments,

Inherent Limitations of Infernal Financial controle with Heference to consolidated Finaneial
Statements

Becawse of the inherent Iimitatione of inlermal financial contrals with reference o consolidated financial
stalements, miclading the possibility of collusion or mmproper management override of controls, material
misstatements due o error or frasd may eccor and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of
the infernal financial controly with reference to consolidated financial statements to future pesiods are
subaect o the nsk that the inermal finaneial conteals with reference o consolidmed {irsncial statemens
may become insdequate becanise of changes in conditions, or that the degree of complizmoe with the policies
ar pracedures may detesiorae,

ForBS R & Co, LLF
Charrered Accoumtan
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Mirs, Bectors Food Specialities Limited (C1N; UT4E90FBIR9SPLO03ITT)
Consolidated Balance sheet ms at 31 March 2019
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Mrs. Bectors Faod Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4S09PR1ISISPLOGAHIT)

Consobdnied Balames sheet as at 31 March 20010
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN; UT4899PBI1993PLCDI31T)
Motes o Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 200179

Reporting entiny

Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited referred to as “the Company™ or “Parent™ is domiciled in India.
The Company s registered office is at Themg Road, Phillaur-142410, Punjab, india. These consolidated
financial siatements comprise of the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred 1o as the *Group”)
and its associate, The Group and its associate is engaged in the busmess of manufacturing and
digribution of food products. The Group caters to both domestic and export markets.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Group and its associate has consistently applied the following accounting policies 1o all periods
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation
Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 and the
Companies (India Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 notified under section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, {the "Act’} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where & newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use,

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company”s Board of Directors
on 2% July 2019.

Effective 1 April 2017, the Group and its associate had adopted the Ind AS standards and the adoption
was carried out in sccordance with Ind AS 101, First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards,
with | April 2016 as the transition date, The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principles generally accepied in India as preseribed wider Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

i Fumctiona] and presemtation currenc)

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. which is the Group and its
associate”s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions, upto two places
of decimal, unless otherwise stated.

i) Buasis of measurenent

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost hasis except for the
following:

—  Defined benefit liability/{assets)y; Fair value of the plan assets less present value of defined
benefit obligations

—  Certain financial assets and liabilites (including derl'-ullw: instrumenis: measured at fair value
Share-based payments: measured at fair value of sharetiiRed payments
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Mrs. Rectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB1995PLCO3341T)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Fair valie msasurensent

Fair valee is the price that would be reczived from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
onderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 1akes place
either—
' It the principal market for the asset or labaility, or

I the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible tod by the Group and its associate.
Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
stfements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
lewel input that is significant to the fair value measurement &5 a whole-
- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

fiti  Use of fudgmenis and estimaies

In preparing these consolidated financial stalements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Group and its associaie’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prudent and ressonable. Actual
results may differ rom these estimates.

Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively,

Juclgemenss

information about the judgments made in applyving sccounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements have been given below:

_ Mote 49 - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the
assets the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding:

~  Note 43 - classification of leases into finance and operating bease;

—  Mote 43 — leases: whether an arrangement contains lease

Assumptions ard estimation uceriainiies

Information shout assumptions and estimation uncertaintics that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the consolidated financial statements for the every period ended is included
b v
_ Nete 3 Sand 6 - useful life and residual value of property. plant and equipment and intangible
asseis;
_ Note 46 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Note 48 - farr value of share based payments
~  Note 41 - recognition and measurement of provisions and conti
Mote 49 - impairment of financial assets;
MNote 49 - Fair value measurement of financinl msirumenis. § =
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PB1995PLC3341T)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009

—  Note 12 — write down of inventories
~ NMote 2m, 10 and 23 - recognition of tax expense including deferred tax. availability of future
taxable profits against which tax losses carried forward can be used

Basis of consolidaiion

Subsidinries

Subsidinries are all entities over which the Growp has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Giroup is exposed 10, or has rights to, variable returms from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability 1o affect those returns through its power to direet the relevant activities of the entity, Subsidiaries
gre fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group, They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expense. Intercompany transactions.
balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group entities are eliminated. Unrealized losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where recessary 10 ensure consistency with the
policies adopted.

Mon-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated statement of changes in Equity and
Conselidated Balance sheet respectively,

Aczanciates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but ot control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group holds from 20%% 1w 5% of the voting rights.
Investiments in associate are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. afier being
recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recoenised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group and it associate’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee on profit and loss. and the Group and its associate’s share of other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associate and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group and its gssociate’s share of losses in an equity-accounied investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group and
its associate does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalfl of the other entity.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associate and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group and its associate’s interest in these entitics. Unrealized losses are alsc
climinated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impaimment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary 1o ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group and its associate.

The consalidated financial statements are comprised of the financial statements of the members of
the Group as under: r
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Mrs. Hectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: U74899PB1995PLC03341T)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Country of % of Interest
Name of subsidiaries [ Associate incorporation y e s el
31 March 31 March 2018
. 2019

Subsidiaries

Bakebest Foods Private Limited India | 0 | 100

Mrs. Bectors English Owven Limized India | (W) [ ()
Associate '

Cremica Agro Foods Limited India 43.09 44.95

¢l Property, plant and equipment

i

Recognition amd mensurement

lems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property. plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, afler deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are pocounted foras a separate itlems {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Major machinery spares parts are classified as property. plant and equipment when they are expected
to be wrilized over more than one period. Other spires are carried as inventory and recoenised in the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss as and when consumed,

Any gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss,

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use is recorded as capital
work-in-progress before such date, Cost of construction thet relate directly to specific property, plant
and equipment and that are atiributable to construction activity in general and can be allocated to
specific property. plant and equipment are included in capital work-in-progress,

On transition 1o Ind AS, the Group and s associaie has lected 1o continue with the carmving value
of all of its propertv. plant and equipment recognized as at | April 2016 as per the previous GAAP
and use that as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Suhsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and its associate.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates
based on the useful lives prescribed as per Part C of schedule 11, of the Companies Act 20013 excepl
in case of certain plant and machinery such as moulds, crates and pallesFhene Wismanagement has
assessed useful life as 3 years hased on imemal technical evaluation % g
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Mrs, Beetors Food Specialities Limited (CTN: UT4R90PRIPOSPLON3341T)
Notes to Consolidated fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease.
Leasehold land is amortised pro=rata over the lease period on a straight line basis,
Intangible assets comprise of computer software which are amortized over a period of live years.

Depreciation on additons (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use {disposed o).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each fnancial year end and
adjusted if appropriate.

O transition to Ind AS. the Group and its asseciate has elected to continue with the carry ing value
of #ll of its property, plant and equipment recognized as at | April 2016 as per the previous GAAP
and use that as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and its associate are measured (nitially ai cost. Cost of
an item of Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including impon duties and non-refundable
purchaze taxes, ufter deducting trade discounts and rehates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item to its working condition for its intended use. After initial recognition. an intangible asset is carried
ai its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific assel to which it relates, All other expenditure is recognised in Consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss as incurred.

Estimated useful life of the softwares s considered as 3 years.

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted, if appropriate,

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future econonic benefits are expected from
use or disposal, Gains or bosses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset. measured as the
difference betwesn the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Consolidated statement of Profitand Loss when the asset is derccognised.

Advances paid towards acquisition of imangible assets outstanding at cach period end date, are shown
under other non-current assets and cost of assets not ready for intended use before the period end. are
shown as intangible asset under development,

On transition to Ind AS, the Group and its associate has elected to continue with the carrying value of

all of its inangible assets recognised as at | April 2016 as per the previous GAAF and use that as the
deemed cost of the Intangible assets.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional cusency of the Group
and fs associate st the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. :
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Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: U74899PB1993PLO033417)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency af the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a
foreign currency sre translated af the éxchange rate ar the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generslly recognised in the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment 1o interest costs) incurred in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Bormowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessanily take a substantial period of time o get ready for their intended use are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Emplovee benefiis
Showt-ternn emplovee berefiis

Short-term employee benefits ane expensed as the related service s provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group and its nssociate has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation
can be estimoted reliably,

Sherre-based pavwent Iransociions

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granied 1o employess
recognised as an employee expense, with a cormesponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimalely recognised as an expense is based on the number
of awards that do meer the related service and non-market vesting conditons at the vesting date.

Post-emplavment henefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined ¢ontribution plan 15 a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contribations into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation 1o pay further
amounts, The Group and ifs associate makes specified monthly confributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised a5 an employee benefit expense in the Consolidated statement of Profit and loss in the
periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Group and its associate's grutuity benefit scheme is a delfined benefit plan.
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MNotes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Lararwity

The Group and its associate’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separataly
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that emplovees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair valoe of any plan assets,

The Parent Company’s plan is funded with an Insurance Company in the form of insuranee policies.
The calcolation of defined benafit obligation is performed annually by a qualified sctuary wsing the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group and s
pssociate, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (“the asset ceiling’ ).
In order to caloulate the present value of economic benefits, consideration s given to any minimum
funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the netl delined benefit lability, which comprise actuanal gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (iF any, excluding interest),
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OC1). The Group and its associate determines the net
inerest expense (income) on the net defined benefit linbility (asset) for the period by applyving the
discount rate used 10 measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the anneal period 1o the
then-net defined benefit lizhility (nsset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
lrability (asset) during the period as a result of contnbutions and benefit payments, Net interest expense
and other expenses refated to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Consolidated staterment of
Profit and Loss.

Chthrr lewnrgr tovm emploves benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to ocour within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a lability o the present valuve of the
defined benefit obligation as at the Conselidated Balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets,
if any oul of which the obligntions are expected to be settled. The cost of providing benefits is
determined waing the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at ench
Consolidated Balonce sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss i the penod in which they occur.

h) Revenue

I Sale of goods

The Group and its associale éamns revenue primarily from business of manufacturing and
distribution of food products.

Effective | April 2018, the Group and its associate has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenue from
contracts with customers”™ which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether,
how misch and when revenue i 1o be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind
AS 11 Construction Contracts. The Group and its associate has adopted Ind AS 115 using the
cumulative effect method. The adoption of the standard did not have any material impact to the
financial statements of the Group and its associate.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services 1o customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration which the Group and its sssociste expects to réceive in
exthange for those products or services.
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Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return
of goods can be estimated relinbly, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, Revenue is measured net of retums, trade
discounts and volume rebates,

Revenues icludes excise duty and are shown net of sales tax, value added tax and goods and
services tax.

ii. Rendering of services

Revenue in respect of sale of services is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements,

iii.  Enoerest income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective imierest rate method. The effective
imterest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated furure cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross camying amount of a financial asset. Interest income is
included under the head “other income™ in the consolidated statement of Profit and Los

iv. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group and its associate’s right to receive the dividend is
established which & generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

V. Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to considerstion in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
custorner, [f the Group and itz associate performs by transferring goods or services 1o o customer
before the customer pays consideration or hefore payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earmed consideration that is conditional.

wi. Contract liabilities
A contract hability 15 the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
and its associate has receved considermtion (or an amount of eénsiderntion is due) from the
customer. [f & customer pays consideration before the Group and its associate transfers goods or
serviges to the customer. a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment b5 cue (whichever is earfier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group and its associate performs under the contract,

i} Government grants and subsidies

Crovernment granis for capital assets are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Group and its associate will comply with the
conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in Consolidated Sinterment of Profit and
Lioss as other income on a systemaric basis

Girants that compensate the Group and its associate for expenses incurred are recognised in Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss as other operating income on a svstematic basis in the periods in which
such expenses are recognized.
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Naotes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary, Materials and other
items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Gioods in transit are valued at cost
excluding import duties. Cost of raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on
weighted average cost basis.

Wark-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes direct materiats and labour  and & proportion of manufacturing overheads based on
normal operating capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty,

Net realisable velue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary ¢ourse of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The Group and its associate has a pelicy for writing off the inventory of finished goods which is
mare than 90 days old at vear end.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group and its associate has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are 00! recognised for future operating
lzsses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligntion a1 the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is @ pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moncy
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time 15
recogiised as interest expensc.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the oceurrence or non-gccurrence of one ar more future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an utflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed s a contingent linbility, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial stiatements but disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include denvative contracts
such as foreign exchange forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host contract, etc.
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1y  Financial assets
i Initial recogwition amd measurement

The Growp and its agsociate initially recognises financial assets on the date on which they are originatad.
The Group and its associate recognises the firancial assels on the trade date, which is the date on which
the Group and its nssociate becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assel except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

i Clussificoiony ard sphseguent Meaymrement
Classifications

The Group and its associate classifies its Ninancial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair velue depending on the Group and its associate’s business model for managing the financial
gssets and the contractual cash fow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Group and its associate makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of pringipal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Groop
and irs associate considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
Mows such tha it would not meet this condition.

Diehy immstraimment o aaroriined cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair valoe though profit and loss (FVTPLY
— itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows: and
~ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely pavments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Efective Interest Rate (' EIR") method. Amorntised cost i calculated by taking into account any discoumn
ar premium an acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses artsing from impairment are recognised
in the profit or loss,

Dl instruenent of fair value trough Ether Comprehensive fncome (FVOCT

A financlal asset is measured at FYOCT only if both of the following conditions are met:
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- the contractunl terms of the financial asset represent contractuml cash flows that are solely
pavments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured st fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive mcome (OC1), Interest income is recognised hasis EIR
method and the losses arising from Expected Credit Losses (ECL) impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Dby instrumeni ai foir vadue throwgh profic and loxs (FFTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eriteria for categorisation as at amonised cost or as
FYOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Equity tasiriumetsls
All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured a1 fair value,

Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as &t FWTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group and its associate decides to classify the same either as at FVTOC] or FVTPL.
The Group and its associnte makes such election on an instrument by instrument hasis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is imevocable.

If the Group and it3 associate decides to classify an equity instrument 4s at FVTOC], then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI, There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI w P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group and its associate may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Investments in tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at amortised cost.

iy Reclassification of financial assels

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Giroup and its associate changes its business model for managing financial assets,

ivi  Derecogmition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a Group and its associate of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group and its associate’s
Conzolidated Balance sheet) when:

—  The rights to receive cash Rows from the asset have expired, or
The Group and its associate has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 1o a thind
party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement. and either (a) the Group and its associate has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group and its associate
has neither transferred nor retained substantinlly all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset
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Wi Fmperierment o el aasets

The Group and its associabe dssesses on a forward looking basis the expected cradit losses associated
with its assets carried at amortised cost and FYOCT debt instruments. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been o significant increase in credit risk.

With regand (o trade receivable, the Groop and its associate applies the simplified approach as permitied
by Ind AS 109, Financia! Instrimenis, which requires expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised from
the initial recognitson of the trade receivables.

wit  feperiernent off more-fincnciod axxeis

The Group and lis associate and its assoclale’s non-firancial ssets other than inventories and defermed
tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For
impairment testing, assets that do nol generate independent cash inflows are prouped together into a
cash-generating unit (CGU), Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
mnflows that are largely independent of the cash inthows of other assets or CGLs,

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its valuz in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted (o their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects curment market assessments of the tme value of money and the risks
spegific 1o the OGL,

The Group and its associate’s corporate agsets (e.o., office building for providing support to various
CGls) do not generate independent cash inflows, To determine impairment of a corporate asset,
recoverable amount 15 determined for the CGLs o which the corporate asset belonges.

An impairment loss s recognised if the carrving amount of an asset or CGL exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impamrment foss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated ro the CGU, and then to reduce the carryving amounts of the other assets of the CGU
{or Group and itz associate of CGLUs)on a pro rata basis.

Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have
decreased. Such a reversal is made only 1o the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amerization, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

After impairment. depreciation Is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

2)  Financial liabilities

i feiticl recogwnition amd meaturemens

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial labilities at Fair valee through profit
or loss. amdortized cost, as appropriale.
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All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and. in the ease of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
fiy  Classification and subsequpnt meauremen

The measurement of financial lnbilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities mepsured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial lisbilities are amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Gaing and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process,

Financial liabilities at fair value throu r loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liahilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

Ciains or losses on Habilities held for irading are recognised in the profit or loss.
fif)  Derecogmition of financial fabilives

The Group and its associate derecognises a financial |iability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelied. or expired.

3y (vifsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reponted in the Consolidated
Balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
fnention o settle on @ net basis, or realise the asset and settie the hability simultaneocusly [ “the offset
critena’)

43  Derivative financial instruments

The Group and its associate holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign curmency
exposures, Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the host contract is not & financial asset and cértain critena are mel.

Dherivatives are initially recognised at fuir value on the date a derivative contract 13 entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Group and its
gsgociate enters into ¢ertain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. Such
contracts are accountad for a1 fair valee through profit or loss and are included in other grins’ {losses).

Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It & recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss exiept to the extent that it relates 1o a business combination or to-an item recogrised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive inceme.
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il

Current tna

Cuirrent 1ax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the vear and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expested to be paid or recerved
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related 10 income taxes. It is measured using tix rates
{and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitics are offset only if there is a legally entoreeable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended 1o realise the asset and settle the liability
on & net basis or simulianeously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the Consolidated Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all txable temporary
differences, Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temposary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised, Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of goodwill or from the
initil recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and lizbilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Consolidated Balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deeferred tax assets and liahilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the Hability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enncted hy the Consolidated Balance sheet date. The
measurement of deferred tax lishilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow Ffrom the manner in which the Group and its associate expects. at the reporting date, o
recover or settle the carmying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off
current tax asscts against current tax liabilities and when they relute to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group and its associate intends to seftle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Consolidated staterment of Profit and Loss, excepl
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Minimum Alternative tux

Minimum Aliernative tax (MAT) under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised
as current tax in profit or loss, The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is
adjusted from deferred tax liability only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Group and its associate will pay normal income tax during the period for which the
MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability,. MAT credit
recognised adjusted from deferred tax fability is reviewed a=CH Dalance sheet date and.
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Leases
Dietermining whether an arrangemenl comfains a lease.

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or containg) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement a8t the inception of the lease, The arrangement, is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specified asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a rght
to wse the asset or assets, even if that right s not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Group and its associate
separates payments and other consideration required by the amangement into those for the lease and
those far other elements on the basic of their relative fair values. Subsequently, the liability is reduced
ms payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Group and
its associate”s incremental harmowing rate.

Where the Group and i associae Is the Lessee:

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the Group and its associate substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lense
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achicve o constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability. Finance charges are
recognized as finance costs in the consoliduted statement of Profit and Loss. Lease management fees,
legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asser is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset based on internal
technical evaluation of the useful life envisaged in Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,
However, if there is no reasonable certinty that the Group and its associate will ohtain the ownership
by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the estimated usefiul life of the nsset, the lease term or the useful life envisaged in Part © of Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, Z0135.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group or its assaciaie s the lessor;

Leases in which the Group or its associate transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of awnership
af the assat are clissified as finance leases. Assets given under finance lease are recognized as a
receivahle at an amount equal 1o the net investment in the lease. After initial recognition, the Group and
its’ associate apportions lease rentals between the principal repayment and interest income so as 10
achieve a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance
lease, The interest income is recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct
costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the eonsolidated statement
of Profit and Loss.

Leases in which the Group and its associate does not transfer substantiatly all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included
in fixed assets. Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease werm, Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an
expense in the consolidated stasement of Profic and Loss. Initial directcosts such as legal costs.
brokerage costs, ete. are recognized immediately in the consolidated stpfetnt S Prgfit and Loss = =

L
[a]
[
2
]



Mr=, Bectors Food Specialities Limited {(T1N: UT4899PB1995PLCO3341T)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Scgment reporting

Diperating segments are reported ina manner consisient with the internal reporting provided 1o the chicf
aperating decision maker.

The Board of Directors of the Group and its associate have been identified as being the Chief operating
detision maker by the management of the Group and Rs associate. Refer note 42 for segment
information presented.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Standards issued but not vet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA®) through Companies (Indian  Accounting Standards)
Amendment Bules. 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
has notified the following new and smendments 1o Ind AS which the Group and its associate has not
applied as they are effective from 1 April 201%:

Ind AS 116, Leaves

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases (Ind AS 17) and sets out the
principles for the recognition, mensurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and
Lessars. It intraduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises
present value of the lease payment {discounted using incremental bormrowing rate) as righl-of-use asset
representing its rfight to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments and lease rent expense will be replaced with the amorization of rght-of use-asset and
interest acerved on lease Hability, The standard also contains enhanced diselosure requirements for
lessees and will have consequential impact on cash flows categories as well. The new standard
substantially carrics forvard the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The Group and its associate will adopt Ind AS 116 effective annual reposting period beginning April 1.
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting new
standard will be recognized as an adjustment 1o the opening balance of retuined camings at | April
2019, with no restitement of comparative information,

For nature of lease arrangements, refer note 43 of the financial statements. The Group and its associate
has completed an mitial assessment of the potential impact on its financial statements but has not yel
completed its detailed assessment. The quantitative impact of adoption of Ind A5 116 on the financial
statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as at present.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes {amendments relating o income tax consequences of dividend and
uncertainty over income tax freatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise
the income fax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
secording to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events, The Giroup and its
pssociate does not expect uny impact 1'n'|m this pr-nnnum:r:mcnl: Itis r:l-:'um:u Id'flﬂ[e lhﬂﬂ the Hmmu:lm:n'l




Mrs. Bectors Food Specialities Limited (CIN: UT4899PBI995PLCO334IT)
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

dividends paid to taxation autharities on behalf of sharcholders, Suchamount paid or payable 1o taxation
authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in sccordance with Ind AS |2

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applicd to the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused 1ax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncerainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12 It sutlines the following: (1) the
entity has 10 use judgement. to determing whether cach tax treatment should be considered separatcly
or whether some can be considered together, The decision should be based on the approach which
provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is (o assurne that the taxation
suthority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3} entity
has to consider the probability of the relevant mxation authority sccepting the tax treatment and the
determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rafes
would depend upon the probability, The Group and its associate does not expect any significant impact
of the amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Prepavment Features with Negative Compensation

I'he amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order
10 allow measurement 3t amortised cost (or. depending on the business model, at fair value through
other comprehensive income} even in the case of negative compensation payments. Liroup and its
associate does not expect this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.

Ind A% 19 - Plan Ameadment, Cortaillment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that
the current service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using
the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, smendments have been included to clarify
the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset
ceiling, Group and its associate does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its
financial slements.

Imd AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset 1s
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows
generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borowings. Lroup and its associate does
not expect any impact from this amendment.

Ind AS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The emendmenits clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. 1o long-term interests
in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture dut
to which the equity method is not applied. Group and its associate does nof expect any impact from this
amendment,
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Baked witk love. Just for you!

Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

CIN: U74899PB1995PLC033417

Registered Office: Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab, Phone (01826) -222826, 225418
Website: www.cremica.in, Email id: cs.bis@cremica.in

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

*DP ID

Name & Address of the registered Shareholder

Regd.Folio No./*Client Id.

No. of Share(s) held

(*Applicable for Members holding Shares in electronic form)

I hereby record my presence at the 24" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited held on Friday,
September 20, 2019 at 16:00 Hours (IST) at Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab

Member’s/Proxy’'sSignature

Baked with love. Just for poul

Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited

CIN: U74899PB1995PLC033417
Registered Office: Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab, Phone (01826) -222826, 225418

Website: www.cremica.in, Email id: cs.bis@cremica.in PROXYFORM
FORM NO. MGT-11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule19 (3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Name of the Member(s):
Registered Address:
E-mail Id:
*DP Id.
Regd. Folio No./*Client Id.
(*Applicable for Members holding Shares in electronic form)
I/We, being the member(s) of Mrs.Bectors Food Specialities Limited holding shares, herebyappoint:
(1) Name: Address:
E-mail id: Signature, or failing him;
2) Name: Address:
E-mail id: Signature, or failing him;
3) Name: Address:
E-mail id: Signature,

As mylour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, September 20, 2019 at
16:00 Hours (IST) at Theing Road, Phillaur-144410, Punjab and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

ion No. | Matter of Resolution
1. [To receive, consider and adopt:
(a) the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, comprising Audited Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 along with Notes to Accounts and Cash Flow
Statement appended thereto and Reports of the Board of directors and Statutory Auditors thereon and
the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, comprising Consolidated Audited Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 along with Notes to Accounts
and Cash Flow Statement appended thereto and reports of the Statutory Auditors thereon:
2. To confirm the interim dividend of Re. 0.75/- per equity share paid during the year as the final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2019.

(b)

3. To Appoint Director in place of Mr. Anoop Bector, Director (DIN NO. 00108589) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.

4. To appoint and fix the remuneration of Auditor

5. To alter the Clause Il (B) of Memorandum of Association
Signed this........... day of ..o 2019

Affix
Signature of Shareholder(s)
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s) Stamp
Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.


http://www.cremica.in/
mailto:cs.bis@cremica.in
http://www.cremica.in/
mailto:cs.bis@cremica.in

Route Map for the Venue of the Annual General Meeting
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